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City Of Fl‘ankﬁn . Department of Finance

April 16, 2010

Honorable Mayor, Common Council members
and Citizens of Franklin:

Introduction

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2009, is hereby submitted. State law requires that all general
purpose local governments with a population over 25,000 publish within six months of the
end of the fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with
general accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.

This report consists of management'’s representations concerning the finances of the City of
Franklin (City). Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness
and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis
for making these representations, management of the City has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government’s
assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the
preparation of the City’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of
internal controls should not outweigh the benefits, .the City's comprehensive framework of
internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance
that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we
assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and
reliable in all material respects.

The City's financial statements have been audited by Clifton Gunderson LLP, a firm of
licensed public accountants. The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2009, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involves examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements;
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management;
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor
concluded, based upon the audit, that there was reasonable basis for rendering an
unqualified opinion that the City's financial statements for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2009, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is
presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should
be read in conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be found immediately following the
report of the independent auditors.

9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 53132-9728 (414) 425-7500 Fax: (414) 427-7527



Mayor, Common Council and Citizens
April 16, 2010

City Profile

The City of Franklin, incorporated in 1956, Is located in the southwestern corner of
Milwaukee County. The City is 34.5 square miles in size and has a population of 33,700.
Over the last ten years the City has experienced an average annual population increase of
2.0% per year. The city is a residential community with a growing commercial and industrial
base. It is considered to be one of the more desirable communities in the Milwaukee
metropolitan area in which to live and work. The City provides a typical range of mumc;pal
services for a suburban community including police and fire protection; emergency
medical/paramedic, library, health and sanitary services; building inspection and zoning
control; street, sanitary, storm sewer and water construction and maintenance. The City is
authorized to levy property tax on real and personal property located within its boundaries.

The City operates under the mayor/council form of government. Policy making and
legislative authority are vested in a governing council consisting of the mayor and six
council- members. The governing council is responsible, among other things, for passing
ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees and hiring a city attorney. The
City’s mayor is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the governing
council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the government and for appointing the
heads of the various departments. The council is elected, by district, on a non-partisan
basis. The Mayor and Council members serve staggered three-year terms. The City is
organized into departments, headed by fourteen officials appointed by the Mayor or Director
of Administration and confirmed by the Common Council. Numerous boards, commissions
and cornmittees allow for citizen involvement in government by providing a forum for policy
input to the Council and guidance to the departments. .

The City provides a full range of services, including police, fire protection and emergency
medical services; street construction, maintenance of highways, streets and other
infrastructure; recreational and cultural activities and sanitation services. Library service:is
provided through a separate Library Board that functions like a department of the City and
engages the Library Director. Water service is provided through a separate Water Utility
that functions like a department of the City. These two areas therefore have been included
as an integral part of the City's financial statements. The City also is financially accountable
for a legally separate Community Development Authority (Authority). The. Authority was
established to finance and construct a City Business Park located within the City of Franklin
Tax Incremental Financing District No. 2. The Authority’s activities are reported within the
City’s financial statements. Additional information on the Authority can be found in Note 1 in
. the notes to the financial statements.

The budgetary process serves as the foundation of the City's financial planning and control
system. The preparation of a forecast for the existing programs for the following year is
prepared during June and July. Departmental requests for personnel changes and new
capital outlay expenditures are made by the middle of August. The Mayor then reviews the
forecast including recommended personnel and capital outlay expenditures and determines
by mid August the. personnel and capital outlay expenditures that will be included in the
initlal departmental requested budgets. The departments take this information and submit
their requested budgets by the end of August. The budgets are reviewed and the Mayor
submits his recommended budget by the end of September. The Council through its
Finance Committee reviews the recommended budget and submits a proposed budget to
the Council by mid October. The Council is required to hold a public hearing on the
proposed budget in early November, and then adopts a final budget in mid November. The
adopted budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g. Public Safety), and department (e.g.
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Mayor, Common Council and Citizens
April 16, 2010

Police). Transfers of appropriations between funds, functions or department require the
approval of the governing council. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report
for each fund with an adopted budget. The General Fund comparison is presented in Exhibit
F as part of the basic financial statements for the government funds and in Schedules 3 & 4
of the supplementary information. For governmental funds, other than the General Fund,

with adopted budgets this comparison is presented in the supplementary information section
of this report.

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when
considered from the broader perspective of the environment that the City operates.

Economic Condition and Outlook

In line with economic slowdowns nationally and regionally, the pace of growth in Franklin in
2009 continued to be down significantly both in the residential and the non-residential
sectors. The 25 units of new residential construction was down 48.1% from 2008 and
02.5% below the 331 units averaged during the previous ten years. The value of non-
residential construction dropped 49.9% from 2008 and was 68.7% below the average value
realized during the previous ten years. Prospects in 2010 for residential, commercial and
industrial development is anticipated to approximate 2008 levels.

Estimated actual property values have grown at an average annual rate of 7.8% since 1999,
The new growth net of TIF Districts was $38.2 million in 2009 $49.8 million in 2008 and
$80.9 million in 2007.The growth in 2010 is expected to be in the $20 million dollar range
reflecting the slowdowns during the last three years. Growth after 2010 is expected to return
to levels higher than the past few years. The history of higher growth has allowed the City to
maintain a relatively low municipal tax rate while still funding the increased cost of services
required as a result of the City’s growth.

Residential Growth

Over the past ten years, residential valuation has grown at an average annual rate of 8.3%.
In 2009, permits for 25 new equivalent residential units were issued. The decrease from the
prior year reflects the continued area housing slowdown in residential construction.
Lingering effects of the slowdown will keep growth from new construction in 2010, at about
the same level as 2009. Longer range the City remains attractive to builders and potential
residents.

Commercial and Industrial Growth

Over the past ten years, commercial and industrial valuation has increased at an average
annual rate of 11.9%. In 2009, 35 building permits were issued for commercial and
industrial projects. The value of those projects decreased by 49.9% from the 2008 level.

The City’s Business Park has 19 acres (6%) unsold with another 47 acres (14%) sold but
not yet developed. The total incremental value of the Business Park, which comprises the
City’s TIF District No. 2, exceeded $169 million in equalized value at January 1, 2009. This
value and the projected increases in values should generate sufficient tax increment to
repay the existing TIF District debt by 2011, the last scheduled principal repayment date.
Based on preliminary projections, when the TIF District No. 2 is closed (currently expected
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Mayor, Common Council and Citizens
April 16, 2010

to be in 2012), over $180 million of Elddltanal value is expected to be added to the property
tax rolls.

In 2005 the City established two new TIF Districts (#3 & #4) on the eastern side of the City.
The two districts have experienced a good start with increments of $85 and $20 Million,
respectively.

Anticipated residential growth will continue to place demands on the commercial sector for
goods and services that, in' tum, is expected to continue the trend of commercial growth.
Expansion of the commercial and industrial tax base is a goal of the City with respect to the
overall tax rate, as 73.8% of the City's property vaiue is currently residential down from

74.9% the prior year. Future tax relief will need to come from industrial and commercial tax
base expansion.

Organizational and Service Growth

The year 2009 was a year of revenue shortfall for the City approximating $1 Million.
Development revenue continued to decline due to the economic slowdown, ambulance
Tevenue and interest revenue made some significant adjustments necessary. A hiring
freeze was reestablished in the early part of the year resulting in a number of vacant
positions not being filled resulted in a reduced leve! of expenditures.

Planning efforts culminated this year in the revision of the comprehensive master pian. The
low level of activity was reflected in reduced City construction and park development
projects. The Health Department continued its outreach to the local schools and continued
offering immunizations at businesses in the Business and Industrial Parks, including
Hepatitis B vaccines. The H1N1 issue was addressed to provide protection for residents.

2009 was not a City-wide property re-assessment year. The last re-assessment was done
in 2006 with a revaluation scheduled for 2010. Performing revaluations on a regular basis:is
in line with the Common Council's policy decision to schedule a revaluation every three
years to keep property values in line with current market values. The State determined that
the local assessments were 96.7% of fair value. The estimated actual value of City
properties exceeds $3.8 billion.

The challenge for the operating departments in 2009 was to maintain the service levels at a
time of declining revenues to the City and a growth of 1.1% in new properties. Limited tax
growth did not provide resources tc maintain services in the light of other revenue decllnes
and employment cutbacks an d budget stringencies were necessary.

Internal Controls

The City’s internal control structure is subject to ongoing evaluation by management. The
City is responsible for ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to
ensure compliance with laws, regulations and good financial policies. The results of the
City's audit for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 provided no instances of material
weaknesses in the internal control structure or significant viclations of applicable laws or
regulations. As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, if the level of grant
expenditures exceeds an established level, currently $500,000, a single audit of grants is
required. The City was not required to have a single audit of grants for 2009.
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Mayor, Common Councit and Citizens
April 18, 2010

Budgeting Controls

The City maintains budgetary controls, The objective of these controls is to ensure
compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by
the Common Council. Activities of the General Fund, Library Fund, Sanitary Sewer Fund,
Debt Service Fund, Capital Ouflay Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Equipment
Replacement Fund and Street Improvement Fund are included in the annual appropriated
budget. The legal level for budgetary control is at the function level (e.g. public safety)
within individual funds. The legal level of control is defined as the level at which
expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount without a resolution approved
by Common Council. Any unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end.

Long range financial planning is in place especially for the Capital funds and debt service
funds to insure that resources are in place to meet committed projects and insure that there
is adequate funding for projects prior to their approval and that adequate funding is in place
for debt that has been or will be incurred with an appropriate plan for repayment.

Financial Policies

The City maintains policies on fund balance level, debt policy, investment policies, budget
forecasting policy and a capitalization policy. These policies together with conservative
management has resulted in @ number of actions that has served the City well. For example
six positions (three layoffs) were eliminated during the process of developing the 2009
budget which aided the budget in 2009 by reducing the cost pressure on the organization.
The fund balance policy influenced the decision to take advantage of the low asphait pricing
and double the amount of projects to be done in 2009 which has reduced the pressure of
road resurfacing for 2010 and 2011. The debt policy that influenced the decision to call and
repay debt when the investment policy led to increased liquidity at a time of historic low
investment rates. -

Cash Management -

Short term cash is pooled and invested in demand deposits, savings deposits and the State
of Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool. Cash reserves are invested by an
investment manager in commercial paper, U.S. Treasury notes, Government Agency
instruments, corporate notes and U.S. Treasury money market funds until needed for
operations. Interest income from these programs are allocated to the various funds based
on their respective balances of the pooled investments. The lower rate environment
provided challenges to safely obtain the highest rate possible knowing that overall interest in
any event would be significantly below the prior year.

Risk Management

The City is exposed to a wide variety of risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; workers compensation; and health care for its
employees, Third-party insurance is maintained for workers' compensation, property, liability
and many other potential losses. The City offers full time and some part time employees a
group health and dental plan, which is self-insured by the City., The risk of this plan is

reduced through the purchase of an excess loss health insurance policy with a deductible of
$50,000 per covered participant.
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Mayor, Common Council and Citizens
April 16, 2010

Pension

The City provides pension benefits to its employees. The public works, sewer and water
and maintenance employees are covered by a single employer defined benefit pension
plan. The Police and Fire employees are covered by the Wisconsin Retirement System

pension program. The remainder of eligible employees are covered by a defined
contribution pension plan.

Other Post employment benefits

In addition to pensions, the City also provides postretirement health care benefits for. certain
retirees and their dependants. As of the end of the current fiscal year there were 18 retired
employees receiving some type of postretirement health care benefits. Effective January 1,

2008 the City implemented Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 45, Accounting for post employment benefits. This new standard requires the City to
account for post retirement health costs over the working lives of the employees. The City
of Franklin has aiso elected {o fund the annual required contribution under the standard and
has established a trust for the investment of those funds until needed to pay benefits.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City far its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the year ended December 31, 2008.
The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance
with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports.
This was the sixteenth consecutive year that the City has received this award.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized CAFR whose contents conform to program standards.
Such report must satisfy both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America and applicable-legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. We believe that eur'eurrent
CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements. We will be
submitting the CAFR to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for a 2009 Certificate.

Acknowledgments

Preparation of this report on a tlmely basis could not have been accomplished without the
efficient and dedicated services of the Finance Department staff. Appreciation is also
extended to all other City employees who contributed to its preparation. We also thank the
Mayor, Common Council, and Finance Committee for their interest and support in planning
and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Calvin A. Patterson
Director of Finance & Treasurer
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Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

Independent Auditor’s Report

Common Council
City of Franklin
Franklin, Wisconsin

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City
of Franklin as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009 which collectively comprise City of
Franklin’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of City of Frankiin's management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. The prior year comparative
information for the enterprise funds has been derived from the City of Franklin's 2008 financial
statements which were audited by other auditors and, in their report dated April 16, 2009, they
expressed an unqualified opinion on the respective financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit fo obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respecits,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Franklin as of December
31, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable,
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

The management’s discussion and analysis and required suppiementary information as listed in
the table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no
opinion on it.
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Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Franklin’s basic financial statements. The combining and
individual fund financial statements and schedules listed in the table of contents are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The introductory section and statistical {ables listed in the table of contents have not been

subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

%WALA

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
April 16, 2010
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
(Unaudited)

As management of the City of Franklin (City), we offer readers of the City's financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2009. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter
of transmittal, which can be found on pages 1-6 of this report.

Financial Highlights

» The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities as of December 31, 2009, by $183,704,208
(net assets). Of this amount, $4,900,398 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet
the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

» The City's total net assets increased by a net amount of $5,670,518. Investment in capital
assets, net of related debt increased by $12,432,436, while unrestricted net assets
decreased by $2,317,663 and restricted net assets decreased by $4,444,255. The
changes in the three categories were related. The restricted decrease was due to the
planned use of debt service reserves to meet the higher scheduled repayments. The
unrestricted decrease was related to the decision to use unrestricted reserves to prepay
debt that otherwise would be due in 2010 and 2011. The reduction in debt was the
primary reason that the investment in capital assets, net of related debt increased
significantly. ' , :

» The City's governmental funds reported, as of December 31, 2009, combined ending fund
balances of $16,881,942, a decrease of $8,917,269 from the prior year. There was a
(unreserved fund balance) in total of $736,290 due primarily to the fund deficit in the TIF
Districts Fund which represents the approximate amount of interfund advances remaining.
The receipt of future tax increments will address that issue. Unreserved fund balances in
other funds amounted to $6,471,030 or approximately 40 percent of the total fund balance
that is available for spending at the government's discretion.

« The unreserved fund balance as of December 31, 2009 for the general fund was
$5,078,711 or approximately 21 percent of total anticipated 2010 general fund
expenditures.

e The City's Governmental activities debt decreased by $10,915,000 during 2009.
Scheduled repayments of $6,515,000 were augmented by $4,400,000 in debt repayments
from discretionary funds due to the low reinvestment rate on investments.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion _and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic
financial statements. These basic financial statements are comprised of three components:
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the
financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to
the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements

The governmeht—wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
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The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the City is improving or deteriorating. .

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
. cash flows. Thus, revenue and expenditures are reported in this statement for some ifems
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned
but unused vacation and sick leave). -

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenue (governmental activities) from other
functions that_are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-like activities). The governmental activities of the City include
general government, public safety, public works, health & human services, culture &
recreation and conservation & development. The business-type activities inciude the Franklin
Water Utility and the City Sanitary Sewer fund. :

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the
primary government) but also a legally separate Community Development Authority for which
the City is financially accountable. Financial information for this blended component unit is
reported as part of the financial information presented for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on Exhibits A & B of this report.
Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near
term inflows and outfiows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government'’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of
the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet
and the governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund

balances provide -a recongciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds
and governmental activities. .

The City maintains fifteen individual Qovernmental funds. Information is presented separately

in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenue,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General, Debt Service and TIF Districts
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Funds, that are considered to be major funds. Data from the remaining twelve govermnmental
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of
these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements later in
this report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits C, D, E & F of
this report. These statements include a budgetary comparison of the General Fund.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund, Debt Service Fund,
Library Operating Fund, Capital Outlay Fund, Equipment Replacement Fund, Street
Improvement Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Sanitary Sewer Fund and the Franklin Water
Utility. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for all governmental funds
demonstrating compliance with their budgets.

Proprietary funds

Proprietary funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities
in the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary funds provide the same type of
information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary
fund financial statements provide separate information for the Franklin Water Utility, the
Sanitary Sewer Fund and the Internal Service Fund.

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits G, H & | of this report.

Fiduciary funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s programs. The
fiduciary funds maintained by the City are the Property Tax Agency Fund, that records the tax
roll and tax collections for the City and other taxing jurisdictions, an other agency funds to
record that activity and a post employment benefits trust to hold funds until needed to pay
designated health benefits for current and future retirees.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on Exhibit J & K of this report.

Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements is found on pages 38 - 73 of this report.

Other information

In addition to the basic financial statements, notes and accompanying notes, this report also
presenfs certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Frankiin's
progress in funding its pension obligations to its public works employees and its retiree health
obligations to eligible full time employees. Required supplementary information can be found
on page 74 of this report.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules section presents

combining statements in connection with non-major governmental funds, a detailed
budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with the
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budget complementing the statement included in the basic governmentél fund financial
statements, and other information related to the individual funds are presented immediately

following the required supplementary information. Schedules 1 to 11.2 can be found on
pages 75 — 91 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's
financial position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $183,704,208 and
$178,033,690 at the end of 2009 and 2008, respectively.

CITY OF FRANKLIN NET ASSETS
December 31, 2009 and 2008

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Curmrent and :
ofher assets $ 52453291 § 59842143 § 4261888 $ 3672234 % 58715179 $ 63514377
Capital assets 115,276,159 112,959,942 90,828,550 50,842,486 206,104,718 203,832,428
Total assets 167,729,450 172,832,085 95,080,447 84,514,720 262,819,897 267,346,805
Long-term liabilities 40,734,583 50,845,466 80,078 80,624 40,814,661 50,926,100
Current liabilities 37,222 328 37,336,035 1,078,700 1,050,980 38,301,028 38,387,015
Total liabiiities 77,956,811 88,181,501 1,158,7 78 1,131,614 79,115,689 89,313,115
Net assets:
Invested in capital
assets, net of
related debt 86,456,038 74,009,675 90,828,559 80,842 486 177,284,597 164,852,161
Restricted 1,291,825 5,732,084 227,388 231,384 1,519,213 5963468
Unrestricied 2,024,676 4,908,825 2,875,722 2,309,236 4,900,398 7,218,061
Totai netassets $ 89772538 $ 84650584 § 03931669 $ 93383106 $ 183,704,208 § 178,033,690

The largest portion of the City's net assets (approximately 96 and 93 percent, in 2009 and
2008, respectively) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery,
and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these net
assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay
this debt must be provided from other sources, since capital assets themselves cannot be
used to liquidate these liabilities.

Investment in capital assets accounted for $177,284,597 and $164,852,161 in 2009 and
2008, respectively of the year end net assets. The changes in capital assets were as follows:
Change
in Capital

Net

Capital Asset

Additions

Depreciation

Related Debt

Net

Increase

. 2009 § 6,515153 $ (4,242,863) $ 10,160,146 §$§ 12,432,436

2008 $ 9,180,579
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The major City prOJec:ts contrlbutlng to this increase was in 2009 the reconstruction of Drexel
Avenue from 27" Street to 31% Street, the reconstruction of Fire Station #3 and increased
road resurfacing due to the low price of asphalt. In addition the debt repayments resulted in a
significant decrease in capital related debt. In 2008 the reconstruction of Drexel Avenue from
Highway 36 to Highway 100 and the installation of a 24" transmission main from 68" to 51°
along Puetz Road. Infrastructure contributed by developers as part of developer's
agreements contributed approximately $351,000 in 2009 and $864,000 in 2008 to the
capitalized infrastructure through capital grants and contributions of govemmental activities
and $568,000 in 2009 and $734,000 in 2008 to capitalized infrastructure through capital
grants and contributions for business-type aciivities.

An additional portion of the City's net assets (0.8 percent and 3.3 percent in 2009 and 2008,
respectively) represent resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be
used. There were $1,519,213 and $5,963,468, respectively in those net assets that were
restricted to specific purposes with the remairiing balance in unrestricted net assets of
$4,900,398 and $7,218,061, in 2009 and 2008 respectively may be used to meet the City's
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year the City was able to report positive balances in the
unrestricted net assets of the government as a whole as well as for its separate business-
type activities. The governmental activities unrestricted net assets did show a deficit in 2009
primarily due to the City's decision to use available resources to prepay debt service
otherwise due in the next two years and funded by future tax levies. In this way higher cost
interest obligations are repaid early at a time-when cash reserves are otherwise earning
substantially less.

There was a 2009 decrease of $4,444,255 in restricted net assets reported in connection with
government-wide activities. The decrease was primarily due to the reduction in available debt
service funds ($1,915,000), additional interfund advances ($2,645,000), and lesser changes
in other restricted funds.

There was a 2008 increase of $558,189 in restricted net assets reported in connection with
government-wide activities. The increase was primarily due to the increase in available debt
service funds ($407,000), and growth in available Development funds ($440,000) offset by
the use of utility improvement funds to pay for Puetz Road 24" transmission main ($368,000).

There was a 2009 decrease of $2,317,663 in unrestricted net assets reported in connection
with government-wide activities. The major reasons for the decrease was the use of funds for
debt service purposes ($2,645,000) and the reduction in the general fund ($440,403) due to
using net assets to ease the transition to fully funding the OPEB obligations and in countering
the shortfall in budgetary revenue of about $1,000,000.

There was a 2008 increase of $6,008,580 in unrestricted net assets reported in government-
wide activities. The major reason for the increase was the decrease in the advances to other
funds that resulted in increased unrestricted net assets.

Government-wide activities
The details of changes in net assets follow:
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City of Frankiin Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ending December 31, 2009 and 2007

Governmental Businesstype
Adlivities Activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Revenue
Program revenue:

Charges for services . $ 3317477 § 3753496 §$ 7448519 $ 6925236 $ 10765996 $ 10,678,732

Operating grants & contributions 2,080,213 2,285,275 - - 2,080,213 2,285,275

Capital grants & contributions 1,180,090 1,735,333 337,667 734,367 - 1,527,797 2,469,700
General revenue; ’

Property taxes 24,966,591 24,219,961 - - 24,966,591 24,219,961

Other taxes 666,767 472,875 - - 666,767 472,575

Intergovernmental 1,380,418 1,320,286 - - 1,380,418 1,320,286

investment eamings 1,401,560 . 1,862,688 46,738 67,617 1,448,298 1,830,305

Other 43 566 14,451 57,627 267,819 101,193 , 282,270

Total revenue 35,046,682 35,664 065 7,890,551 7,995,038 42,937,233 43,659,104

Expenses: .

General government 2,948,713 3,028,903 - - 2,948,713 3,028,803

Public safety 15,526,031 15,528,643 - - 15,526,031 15,508,643

Public works 6,034,720 6,900,407 - - 6,034,720 6,900,407

Health & Human services 708,084 663,262 - - 708,084 663,262

Culture & Recreation 1,780,896 1,803,155 ] - : - 1,780,896 1,803,155

Conservation & development 572,342 718,032 - - - 572,342 718,032

Interest on long-term debt 2,253,215 2,654,969 . - - 2,253,215 2,654,969

Water - - 4,216,453 3,028,578 4,216,453 3,928,578

Sawar ' - - 3,226,261 3,069,523 3,226,261 3,069,523

Total expenses . 29,824,001 31,367,371 7442714 6,998,101 37,266,715 38,365,472

Increase in net assets . ) _

before transfers 5,222,681 4,296,694 447,837 996,938 5,670,518 5,293,632
Teansfers {100,726) 424,212 100,726 (424,212) - -
Increase in net assets 5,121,955 4,720,908 548,563 572,726 5,670,518 5,293,632
Net assets - beginning 84,650,534 79,929,678 93,383,106 92,810,380 178,033,620 172,740,058
Net assefs - ending $ 89,772,539 $ 84850584 5 93931660 § 93383106 §$ 183,704,208 $ 178,033,690

Governmental activities in 2009 increased the City's net assets by $5,121,955 accounting for
91 percent of the total growth in the net assets of the City. Elements of this increase follow:
» Decrease due to General Fund activity of $457,019

s Increase due to the decrease in Long term Debt of $1,737,327

» Increase in governmental activities capital assets net of depreciation of $2,286,217

» |ncrease due to the increase from TIF District activities of $2,744,498

= Netincrease from internal service activities of $678,445

» Net increase from special assessment activities of $21,409

» Decrease due to Capital Improvement activities of $991,330

= Decrease due to Street Improvement activities of $704,633

» Net decrease from other funds activities of $192,959

Governmental activities in 2008 increased the City's net assets by $4,720,906 accounting for
89 percent of the total growth in the net assets of the City. Elements of this increase follow:

= Decrease due to General Fund activity of $608,554

» Net decrease in Debt service activities of $876,545
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Increase in governmental activities capital assets net of depreciation of $4, 469 188

Net increase from internal service activities of $910,553
Net decrease from special assessment activities of $628,933
Net increase from TIF Districts activities of $1,371,002

» Net increase from other funds activities of $84,195

Expenses by Furiction - Governmental Activities

18,000,000
16,000,000
14,000,000 -
12,000,800
10,000,000 -
8,000,000
6,000,000 -
4,000,000 A
2,000,000
) General . Heahh and rnan CuRure snd Cunsrvshun and | Interest on long-
government Public safety Public warks services recresation developmerd | term debt
@ 2948713 15,525,031 5,264,657 708 {IB4 1,753,150 506,026 2253215
Revenue by Source - Governmental Activities
Charges for services
&,
9% Capital grants &
Operating grants & contributions .
o . 0, =
contributions 3%
6%
Intergovernmental
4%
Interest & Cther
4%
' Property Taxes
Other Taxes o
72%
2%
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Business-type activities

In 2008, busmess—type activities mcreased the City's net assets by $548,563 or .6 percent
from the prior year. The key elements of this increase follow:

The increase from operating activities (the change in net assets excluding capital
contributions and its related depreciation expense was $298,673. The goal of the
business activities is to provide these services at a break even basis to minimize the cost
to the users. The sewer revenue remains below the level necessary to meet this goal.
Contributions of water infrastructure - $1,336, 229 consisting of three developer projects
and three City projects

Contributions of sewer infrastructure - $25,444 consisting of one developer projects
Depreciation expense related to contributed assets - $1,111,783

In 2008, business-type activities increased the City's net assets by $572,726 or .6 percent
from the prior year. The key elements of this increase follow:

The increase from operating activities (the change in net assets excluding capital

contributions and its related depreciation expense) was $500,584. The goal of the
business activities is to provide these services at a break even basis to minimize the cost
to the users. The sewer revenue is currently below the level necessary to meet this goal.
Contributions of water infrastructure - $689,955 consisting of four developer projects and
one City project

Contributions of sewer infrastructure - $477,220 consisting of three developer projects
and one City project

Depreciation expense related to contributed assets - $1,095,033

The following graph compares the 2009 charges for services to the operating expenses for
water and sewer activities.

Operating Revenue and Expense - Business-type Activities

$6,000,000




Water and Sewer expenses can exceed revenue due to the current policy of including only
depreciation from City spending on capital assets in the rate formula. The large amount of
new infrastructure that has been installed in recent years is the reason for this policy. When
maintenance and replacement costs begin to increase this policy may need to be
reevaluated.

As shown on the following chart, the Business-type revenue includes capital grants and
contributions, investment earnings and miscellaneous income in addition to charges for
services (operating revenue).

Revenue by Source - Business-type Activities

Capital grants &
contributions -Sewer yyorect & Other
Capital grants & 0% %
contributions -Water Charges for services -
15% Water
51%

Charges for services -
Sewer
34%

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. .

Governmental funds.

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $16,881,942, a decrease of $8,917,269 in comparison with the prior
year. At year end there was unreserved fund balance in total of $736,280. Of this total
unreserved fund balance, the following amounts were committed to specific types of
activities; i.e., $5,078,711 for general fund activities, $165,348 for special revenue fund
activities, $1,226,971 for capital project activities and offset by a $5,734,740 deficit in the TIF
Districts activities. The TIF Districts deficit is due to the favorable type of interim financing
selected and will be addressed by a permanent source of financing at an appropriate time.
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The remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new
spending because it has already been committed 1) to pay debt service ($8,845,900), 2) for
advances to other funds ($5,463,000) 3) for development purposes ($406,562), 4) for library
purposes ($442,509), 5) uncompleted contracts ($517,000), 6) encumbrances ($3,000) and
7) for emergency medical services, prepaid expenses, inventories, utility improvement,
- donations and grants ($467,681).

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. As of December 31, 2009, the total
fund balance of the general fund was $5,104,638 of which $5,078,711 was unreserved. This
unreserved fund balance represents approximately 21% of 2010 general fund expenditures.

The total fund balance of the general fund decreased by $440,403 in fiscal year 2009. The
2009 annual program budget for the City's general fund identified an appropriation of
$1,309,000 in fund balance to reduce the impact of taxes levied and to balance the budget.
Actual expenses were less than budgeted expenses by 7.4 percent or $1,875,654 and actual
revenue was less than budget revenue in the general fund by $1,008,057 or 4.2 percent. This
resuited in the fund balance declining by $440,403. The underexpenditures were mainly from
vacancy in authorized positions and unused contingency. The revenue decline was due from
less interest, ambulance revenue and permit revenue due to the economic slowdown.

The Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of $2,078,900, $60,900 of which is
reserved for the payment of debt service and $2,018,000 is reserved for advances made to
the TIF Districts fund. The fund balance decrease of $6,260,340 came from a planned
reduction in fund balance to pay part of the debt service obligation for the year ($2.5 million)
and the calling of 2010 and 2011 debt to better utilize available liquid assets ($4.4 million).

The TIF Districts Fund has an unreserved fund deficit of $5,734,740 and a reserved fund
balance of $9,152,000 for a net fund balance of $3,417,260. The fund deficit is due to
borrowing and investing those funds in infrastructure. The fund balance is due to an $8.8
million note receivable issued under a development agreement and some contractual
obligations.

The Nonmajor Government Funds have a total fund balance of $6,281,144. The fund
balance decrease came mainly from the reduction in the Capital improvement fund
($991,330) as resources were paid out to complete projects in process and in the Street
improvement fund ($704,633) where the City took advantage of low asphalt prices and
doubled the miles of road resurfaced.

The City's Proprietary Fund provides the same type of information found in the government-
~wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Water Utility at the end of the year amounted to $1,756,993, an
increase of $182,544 from December 31, 2008. The growth in total net assets was $716,384,

Unrestricted net assets of the Sanitary Sewer Fund at the end of the year amounted to
$1,118,729, an increase of $383,942 from December 31, 2008. In spite of the increase total
net assets decreased by $167,821. :

The enterprise funds financial statements can be found on Exhibits G, H and [ of this report.

Page 21



General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Budgetary differences were relatively minor. The major issue was the economy and the
resulting decline in operating revenue that resulted in actual revenue being $1,008,057 below
budgeted revenue. This was pnmarlly due to three areas development related (building
~ permits, engineering review fees, zoning and filing fees) down $402,000, interest revenue
down $357,000 and ambulance revenue down $309,000. The ambulance revenue was
mainly due to an optimistic budget forecast.

Actual expenditures were less than budgeted expenditures by $1,875,654. This amount was
across all functions and impacted by a hiring freeze due to economic conditions. The
Information services, Police, Dispatch, Fire, Engineering, Highway, Parks and Planning
departments accounted for the largest portion of the under expenditures. The unused
contingency budget was $647,000. There were overexpenditures in municipal court, legal,
refuse collection, and animal control budgets.

With significant economy related revenue decreases, budget under expenditures were
unable to offset the revenue decline and the planned reduction in the general fund balance
resulting in an actual reduction of $440,403.

Capital assets.

The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of
December 31, 2009, amounts to $206,104,718 net of accumulated depreciation. This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements other than buildings and
machinery and equipment.

City's Investment in Capital Assets

Govemmental Businessdype
Adivities Activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Land $ 240664244 § 24648453 § 429884 % 426384 § 25,004,128 § 25074837
Buildings and .

Improvements 23,924,476 23,069,585 2,322 250 2,322,250 26,246,726 25,391,835
Improvements ' .

other than buildings 85,791,859 81,281,205 106,500,217 105,178,334 192,292,076 186,459,532
Machinery and i .

and equipment 14,934,355 14,223,837 2,535,712 1,975,076 17,470,067 16,198,913
Construction ' . '

in process 151,662 1,624,809 56,229 611,614 207,891 2,236,423

Total capital assets 149,466,596 144,847,889 111,844,292 110,513,658 261,310,888 255,361,547

Less Accumulated
" depredation (34,190,437} {31,857,947) (21,015,733) (19,671,172) (55,206,170) (61,529,119)

Capital assets net of .
De preciation $ 115276159 § 112,989,942 § 00,828,559 § 90842486 $ 206,104,718 § 203832428

~ The total increase in the City's net investment in capital assets net of depreciation for the
current fiscal year was a total of $2,272,290 or a 1.1 percent increase.

" For further details on capital asset activity. refer to Note 1(D)5 and Note 4(D) of the Notes to
Financial Statements and Schedules 11 - 11.2.
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Long-term debt

At December 31, 2009, the City had general obligation note and bond issues outstanding
totaling $45,165,000. State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a
governmental entity may issue up to 5 percent of its total equalized valuation. The current
debt limitation for the City is $195,632,130. The City's current outstanding general obligation
debt is 23% of the statutory debt limit. In the last 15 years the City has not exceeded 34
percent of the statutory debt limit.

In early 2009 the City called and prepaid $4,400,000 of tax exempt general obfigation notes
scheduled for repayment in 2010 and 2011 by temporarily using available City resources.
The purpose was to reduce the City's carrying cost at a time when reinvestment rates are at
historical low levels. The City resources will be returned as the tax levies are received
designed to repay the original obligation.

The City’s present rating from Moody's for its general obligation debt is "Aa2".

The Franklin Water Utility has no debt outstanding. The Board of Water Commissioners
intention is to generally avoid debt by maintaining and building cash and investments and
from time to time making improvements to its rate structure. The utility’s plan is to make
‘future infrastructure improvements including water main replacement and new water service
from current reserves and from City collected impact fees.

City of Franklin's Outstanding Debt (All purposes)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2009 2008 2002 2008 2009 2008
General obligation
notes $ 35285000 § 46,050,000 $ - % - § 35285000 $ 46,050,000
bonds 9,880,000 10,030,000 - - 9,880,000 10,030,000
Total $ 45,165,000 $ 56,080,000 $ - % - $ 45165000 $ 56,080,000

Additional information of the City's long-term debt can be found in note 4(F), Schedule 5 and
Tables 10 — 12 in the statistical section of the report.

Other Changes of Significance
Defined Benefit Pension Plan Administration

During 2008 a new administration contract was implemented for the Public Works Emiployee
Pension Plan. The result of the change in the assumption was the reduction in the annual
.required contribution. In 2009 the investment assumptions were changed to allow for a five
year smoothing of investment returns partially as a result of the losses incurred in the
portfolio’s investments. This change has increased the annual cost of this pension program.

Post Emplioyment Health Care Benefits
The City of Franklin provides retiree health care benefits to certain retiree groups from the

date of retirement until age 65. Prior to 2008 the City's portion of health care cost was
recognized as expenditure in the period premiums were paid. Funding for those costs was
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provided out of the current operating budget of the City. This was referred to as financing on
a pay as you go basis.

The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement #45 effective for the
City of Franklin. on January 1, 2008 that said that the expense of these benefits has to be
recognized over the working lives of the employees. The City studied the issues surrounding
GASB Statement #45 over the previous four years. The Common Council concluded that the
City of Franklin should not only recognize the expense on its financial statements but should
fund those amounts out of its general revenue starting in 2008 with the establishment of a
section 115 trust. The actuarial computed annual required contribution under GASB #45 for
2009 was $587,216 and for 2008 was $703,713. A combination of tax levy and use of fund
balance was used to implement full funding over a three year period.

More detailed information can be found in footnote 5C.
Economic Factors, Tax Rates and Next Year's Budgets

e« The unemployment rate as of December 31, 2009 for the City was 7.0%, Milwaukee
County which includes the City, is 9.3 percent. ThIS compares with an unemployment rate
of 8.3 percent for the State of Wisconsin.

« The local tax rate change for operations for the current and prior two years were 1.5%,
3.18%, and 1.93%, respectively.

» The tax levy increase for the current and prior two years were, $587,000, $1,054,000 and
$935,000, respectively.

e The 2010 budgets require a local tax rate that increases 0.3% which together with growth
will result in a tax levy increase of $284,000 or 1.4 percent.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for those
with an interest in the government'’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to
the Director of Finance & Treasurer, 9228 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wl 53132.

General information or more defailed financial and budget information relating to the City of
Frankiin can be found at the City's website, www.franklinwi.gov - Finance Department tab.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 2009

Exhibit A

Governmental Business-type
Activitles Activities Total
ASSETS _
Cash and investments $ 11,720,940 $ 1,906,695 .$§ 13,627,635
Receivables
Accounts receivable 738,021 1,894,496 2,633,417
Interest receivable 57,102 - 57,102
Taxes receivable 28,357,443 298,860 28,656,303
Note receivable 8,785,000 - 8,785,000
Special assessments receivable 2,271,777 - 2,277,777
Internal balances 65,5651 (65,551) -
Due from other governments 185,548 - 185,548
Prepaid items 67,679 - 67,679
Inventories 15,359 - 15,359
Restricted cash and investments - 227,388 227,388
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
Land 24,664,244 429,884 25,004,128
Buildings and improvements 17,549,052 1,521,280 19,070,332
Machinery and equipment 6,178,757 1,164,431 7,343,188
Improvements other than buildings 66,732,444 87,656,735 154,389,179
Construction in progress 151,662 56,229 207,891
Deferred charges 181,969 - 181,969
Total assets 167,729,448 95,090,447 262,819,895
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,521,530 1,023,804 2,545,334
Accrued liabilities 686,727 12,620 699,347
Due to other governments 80,117 - 80,117
Accrued interest 597,536 “ 597,536
Special deposits 186,590 2,000 188,590
Unearned revenue 28,357,925 - 28,357,925
Noncurrent liabllities
Due within one year 5,791,901 40,276 5,832,177
Due in more than one year 40,734,583 80,078 40,814,661
Total liabilities 77,956,909 1,168,778 79,115,687
NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets,
net of related debt 86,456,038 90,828,559 177,284,597
Restricted for .-
Library 458,216 - 458,216
Utility improvements 147,317 - 147,317
Development 406,562 - 406,562
Other purposes 279,730 227,388 507,118
Unrestricted 2,024,676 2,875,722 4,900,398
Total net assets $ 89,772,539 $ 93,931,669 $ 183,704,208

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2009

Exhibit C

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Taxes receivable
"Note receivable :
Special assessments receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Prepaid items
Inventories
- Long term advances

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other governments
Special deposits
Deferred revenue
Long term advances

Total Liabilities

FUND BALANCES

Reserved for:
Inventories and prepaid items
Advances to other funds
Encumbrances
Contractual obligations
Debt service
Library services .
Emergency medical services
Utifity improvements
Development
Donations & grants

Unreserved balance (deficit) reported In:
General Fund

- Special Revenue Funds
Capital Project Funds

Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

Total fund balances of governmental funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:;

Capital assets used in government funds are not financial resources and are not reported in the funds.

Internal service net assets

Other long-term assets that are not available to pay for current period expenditures

and are deferred in the funds.

Long-term liabilities, including long-term debt, are not due and payable in the current period

and are not reported in the funds.

Net assets of governmental activities

Nonmajor Total
Debt TIF Governmental Governmental
General Service Districts Funds Funds

$ 5861473 § 60,800 § 811,878 § 3160685 $ 9,903,936
534,234 - - 101,056 635,290
’ - - 57,102 - 57,102
16,148,805 2,172,215 7,457,956 2,577,467 28,357,443
- - 8,785,000 - 8,785,000
781,874 - 1,495,903 2,277,777
65,551 - - - 65,551
105,798 - 8,644 71,106 186,548
9,568 - - 15,707 25,275
15,358 - - - 15,359
- 2,018,000 - 3,445,000 5,463,000
§ 22741788 § 5032089 § 17120580 $ 108759824 $ 55,771,281
$ 849547 3 - % 110262 § 518,474 § 7 1,478,283
370,609 - 15,000 2,936 388,545
80,117 - - - 80,117
186,590 - - - 186,590
16,150,287 2,954,089 7,515,058 4,073,370 30,692,804
- - 6,063,000 - 6,063,000
17,637,150 2,954,089 13,703,320 4 584 780 38,889,339
24,927 - - 15,707 40,634
- 2,018,000 - 3,445,000 5,463,000
1,000 - - 2,000 3,000
- - 367,000 150,000 517,000
- 60,900 8,785,000 - 8,845,900
- - - 442,509 442,509
- - - 10,588 10,568
- - - 147,317 147,317
- - - 406,562 406,562
- - - 269,132 269,132
5,078,711 - - . - 5,078,711
- - - 165,348 165,348

- - (5,734,740) 1,226,871 (4,507 769}
5104638 2,078,900 3,417,260 6,281,144 16,881,942
$ 22741788 § 5032980 § 17120580 $ 10,875,924 $ 55,771,281
$ 16,881,942
115,276,159
2,331,792
2,334,879

547,052,233)
$ B9,772,539

See accompanying notes te the financial statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN _
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2009

Exhibit D

REVENUE
Taxes
Intergovernmental revenue
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Public charges for services
Special assessments
Intergovernmental charges for seivices
Investment eamings
Miscellaneous revenue

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and human services
Culture, recreation and education
Conservation and development
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue
Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Nonmajor Total
Debt TIF Governmental Governmental
General Service Districts Funds Funds

$ 16131019 $ 1,900,000 $§ 4,000,339 $§ 2,702,000 § 25,633,358
2,538,782 - 415,066 345,800 3,299,648
609,278 - - - 609,278
385427 - - - 385,427
1,565,779 - - 34,534 1,600,313
- 263,000 - 554,736 817,736

291584 - - - 291,584
398,410 327,181 224,946 326,063 1,276,600
164,384 - 1,000 470,040 635,424
22,084 663 2,490 181 5,541,351 4,433,173 34,549,368
2780111 - - 333 2,780,444
15,017,640 - - 25,988 15,043,628
4504611 - - - 4,504,611
619,555 - - 82,266 701,821
156,087 - - 1,299,615 1,466,702
344,442 - 143,519 88,243 576,204

- - 881,725 5,179,900 6,061,625

- 7,800,000 3,115,000 - 10,915,000

- 973,711 1,377,171 - 2,350,882
23,422,446 B 773,711 55617,415 6,676,345 44,389,917
{1,337,783) {6,283,530) T 23,936 (2,243,172) (9,840,549)
923,280 23,190 - 1,282,566 2,229,036
(25,800} - (351,540) {928,316) (1,305,756)
(440,403)  (6,260,340) (327,604) (1,888,922) (8,917,269)
5,545,041 8,339,240 3,744,864 - 8,170,066 25,799,211

$ 5104638 § 2,078900 $

3417260 § 6281144 $ 16,881,042

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue

Exhihit E

Expendltures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

To the Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2009

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statemeht
of activities (page 26) are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However in the statement of activities, the cost of these assets
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital
outlays ($4,701,133) exceeded depreciation ($2,765,863)
in the current period.

Contributed capital assets are reported as revenues in the
statement of activities.

Y

The issuance of iong-term debt ( e.g. notes, leases) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal on long-term debt consumes current financial
resources of government funds. Neither transaction, however,has
any effect on net assets. This amount is the net effect of differences
in the freatment of long term debt.

Government funds report the effects of issuance costs, premiums,
discounts and similar items when the debt is first issued, whereas
these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities. This amount is the net effect of the differences in the
treatment of these items.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore, are
not reported as expenditures in the government funds

Revenue in the statement of activities not providing current
financial resources are not reported as revenue in the funds

. Revenue in the governmental funds that provides current
financial resources but has been previously reported as
revenue in the statement of activities

Internal service fund change in net assets

Net change in net assets of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to the financial statemeénts.
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$ (8,917,269)

1,935,270

350,947

10,915,000

(61,263)

142,314

585,182

(506,671)
678,445

$ 5,121,955




CITY OF FRANKLIN

General Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual (on a Budgetary basis)

Year Ended December 31, 2009

Exhibit F

REVENUE
Taxes
Intergovernmental revenue
" Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Public charges for services
Intergovernmental charges for services
Invesiment earnings
Miscellaneous revenue
Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government

Public safety -

Public works

Health and human services

Culture and recreation

Conservation and development
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency} of Revenue
Qver (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Net change in fund balance - budgetary basis

Adjustments to generally accepted
accounting principles basis
2009 encumbrances
2008 encumbrances

Net change in fund balance - generally
accepted accounting principles basis

Fund Balances - beginning

Fund Balances - ending

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Variance with
final budget -
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {(Unfavorable}
$ 17,006,000 § 17,096,000 $ 17,054,299 § (41,701)
2,391,000 2,391,000 2,538,782 147,782
816,400 816,400 609,278 (207,122)
400,000 400,000 385,427 {14,573)
2,185,000 2,185,000 1,565,779 (619,221)
266,000 266,000 291,584 25,584
755,000 755,000 398,410 (356,590)
106,600 106,600 164,384 57,784
24,016,000 24,016,000 23,007,943 {1,008,057)
3,579,666 3,561,666 2,780,111 781,555
15,762,020 15,762,020 15,017,640 744,380
4,670,054 4,688,054 4,505,611 182,443
636,860 636,860 619,555 17,305
229,325 229,325 181,987 47,338
447 075 447,075 344,442 102,633
25,325,000 25,325,000 23,449,346 1,875,654
(1,309,000)  (1,309,000) (441,403) 867,597
(1,309,000)  {1,309,000) (441,403) 867,597
1,000 1,000 1,000 -
(1,308,000)  (1,308,000) (440,403) 867,597
5,545,041 5,545,041 5,545,041 -
$§ 4,237,041 $ 4,237,041 $§ 5,104,638 $ 867,597
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Exhibit J
CITY OF FRANKLIN
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds

December 31, 2009
City of Franklin
Agency Post Employment
ASSETS Funds Benefits Trust
Cash and investments $ 469081634 $ 1,273,900
Accounts receivable - 2,532
Taxes receivable 17,548,193 -
Prepaid expense : .- ' 3,096
Total assets ' 64,529,827 1,280,428
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 75,208 14,670
Accrued ligbilities - . 11,000
Due to other governments 64,441,133 -
Special deposits 13,486 -
Total liabilities : 64,529,827 25,670
Total net assets '
held in trust for post employment benefits $ - $ 1,254,768

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Exhibit K

CITY OF FRANKLIN
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2009

City of Franklin
Post Employment

ADDITIONS Benefits Trust
Contributions
City of Franklin $ 591,351
Retirees 148,073
investment earnings & appreciation - 238,904
Total additions ' 978,328
DEDUCTIONS
Incurred claims 185,152
Prescription drug claims 94,602
Claims fees ' 6,586
Stop loss premiums less claims received 38,742
Total deductions 325,082
Change in Net Assets : 653,246

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:

Beginning of year 601,512

End of year $ 1,254,758

See accompanying notes to the financial staterents. '
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying summary of the City of Franklin's more significant accounting policies
is presented fo assist the reader in interpreting the financial statements and other data in
this report. These policies, as presented, should be reviewed as an integral part of the
accompanying financial statements. The accounting policies of the City conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to
governmental units. A summary of the significant accounting policies follows:

A. REPORTING ENTITY

This report includes all of the funds of the City of Franklin. The reporting entity for the
City consists of (a) the primary government, (b) organizations for which the primary
government is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the nature
and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that their
exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete. A legally separate organization should be reported as a component unit if
the elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable to the
organization. The primary government is financially accountable if it appoints a voting
majority of the organization’s governing body and (1) it is able to impose its will on that
organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial
benefits to or burdens on the primary government. The primary government may be
. financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the primary
government. A legally separate, tax exempt organization should be reported as a
component unit of a reporting entity if all of the following criteria are met. (1) the
economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entirely or almost
entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government, its component units, or its
constituents; (2) the primary government is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise
access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate
organization; (3) the economic resources received or held by an individual organization
that the specific primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the
ability to otherwise access, are significant to that primary government. Blended
component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the
government’s operations and are reported with similar funds of the primary government.
Discretely presented component units would be reported in a separate column in the
government-wide financlal statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the
City. This report does not contain any discretely presented component units.

Blended Component Unit

The Community Development Authority (Authority) was created by the City in 1992 to
serve as a financing vehicle for a certain Tax Incremental Financing {TIF) development
within the City. The Authority is governed by a seven member board appointed by the
Mayor and confirmed by the Common Council. Although it is legally separate from the
City, the Authority is reported as if it were part of the primary government because its
sole purpose is to finance and manage certain TIF development projects for the benefit
of the City and its citizens. The Authority’s operations are included in the governmental
activities of the government-wide financial statements and in a TIF District capital
projects fund. The Authority follows accounting policies of the City. Financial information
on the Authority (TIF District #2) are contained in Schedules ¢ & 10 of this report.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and statement of activities display information about the
reporting government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for
fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between governmental and business type
activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenue and other nonexchange revenue. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods and services
provided.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree that direct expenses of a given
segment or function are offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. The City does not allocate all
indirect expenses to functions in the statement of activities.

Program revenue includes 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or
directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or
segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
included among program revenue are reported as general revenue. Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenue rather than as program revenue.

Fund Financial Statements

Financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds with a fund
considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a
- separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its assets, liabilities, net
assets/fund equity, revenue and expenditures/expenses.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds
and fiduciary funds with the latter being excluded from government-wide financial
statements. Major individual government funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Funds are organized as major funds or nonmajor funds within the governmental and
proprietary fund statements. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the
governmental and proprietary categories. -
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 20092

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A fund is considered major if it is the prlmary operating fund of the Clty or meets the
following criteria:

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenue, or expenditures/fexpenses. of that individual
governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total
for all funds of that category or type.

b. The same element of the individual governmental fund or enterprise fund that met
the 10 percent fest is at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all
governmental and enterprise funds combined.

c. In addition, any other governmental or enterprise fund that the City believes is
important to financial statement users may be reported as a major fund.

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund — accounts for the City's primary operating activities. It is used to account
for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Debt Service Fund - accounts for resource accumulation from taxes, special
assessments and other revenue along with payments made for principal and interest
on long-term debt other than enterprise fund debt.

TIF Districts Fund — accounts for resource accumulation from tax increments and other
revenue of the TIF Districts along with payments made for capital outlay, other
expenditures, principal and interest on long-term debt obligations of the TiF Districts.
Each TIF District is a sub fund of the TIF Districts Fund.

Major Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in
a manner similar to private business - where the intent of the governing body is that the
costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or
(b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenue earned,
expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public
policy, management control, accountability or other purposes.

Water Utility Fund — accounts for operations of providing water services to City residents
and bills for those services.

Sanitary Sewer Fund - accounts for -the operations of providing sanitary sewer services
for City residents and bills for those services.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In addition the City reports:
NonMajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds — account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other
than major capital projects) that are legally or policy restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes. The funds include Library Operating, Library Auxiliary, Master
Plan, Donation, Civic Celebrations and Grant.

Capital Projects Funds — account for resources accumulated to be used for the purchase
of equipment, street replacement, acquisition of land and the construction of capital
improvement projects. The funds include Capital Outlay, Equipment Replacement,
Capital Improvement, Street Improvement, Utility Improvement and Development.

Other Fund Types

Internal Service funds — account for the payment by the City for active employees of
group health and dental charges for services and stop loss insurance charges and the
billing of departments or agencies of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis for the
services received.

Fiduciary funds — account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent
for individuals, private organizations and/or governmental units. The fiduciary funds
include-a property tax fund, an other agency fund that records the agency activity for
emergency government, monitoring and siting activities funded by others and a post
employment benefits trust fund for retiree group health costs.

C. MEASUREMENT Focus, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATICON

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide statement of net assets and statement of activities are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenue is recognized when earned and expenses
are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenue, expenses,
gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like
transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Property taxes are
recagnized as revenue in the year that they are levied for.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. MEASUREMENT FOocus, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (continued)

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued)

Taxes receivable for the following year are recorded as receivables and deferred
revenue. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider are met. Special assessmenis are recorded as
revenue when earned. Receivables are recorded as revenue when services are
performed.

The business-type activities follow all pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board and have elected not to follow Financial Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements issued after November 30, 1980,

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges
between the City’'s Water Utility and Sanitary Sewer fund and various other functions of
the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program
revenue reported for the various functions concerned.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is
recorded when it is both measurable and available. Available means collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the City considers revenue to be available if they are coilected
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are recorded when
the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on long-term debt,
claims, Judgments, compensated absences and pension expenditures which are recorded
as a fund liability when expected to be paid with expendable available financial
resources.

Property taxes are recorded the year levied as receivable and deferred revenue and are
recognized as revenue the next year when services financed by the levy are provided.

Intergovernmental aids and grants are recognized as revenue in the period the City is
entitled to the resources and the amounts are available. Amounts owed to the City are
recorded as receivables. Amounts not available or received prior to the .entitlement
period are recorded as deferred revenue.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continued)

Special assessments levied for benefits to property owners for installation of sanitary
sewers, water mains, roads, and other improvements are recorded as revenue when they
become measurable and available. Annual installments due in future years are recorded
as receivables and deferred revenue.

Revenue susceptible to accrual include property taxes, room taxes, public charges for
services and interest. Other general revenue such as permits, fines and forfeitures,
licenses and miscellaneous revenue are recognized when received or when measurable
and available under the criteria mentioned above.

Deferred revenue is reported on the governmental funds balance sheet. Deferred
revenue arises from taxes levied in the current year that are for subsequent year’s
operations. For governmental funds financial statements deferred revenue arises where
potential revenue does not meet both the “measurable” and “available” criteria for
recognition in the current period. Deferred revenue also arises when resources are
received before the City has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received
prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both
revenue recognition criteria are met or when the City has a |legal claim to the resources,
the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the balance sheet and revenue is
recognized.

Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements (other than agency funds) are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Agency fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of
accounting and the economic resources measurement focus.

The enterprise funds follow all pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board and have elected not to follow Financial Accounting Standards Board
pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989, Proprietary funds distinguish
operating revenue and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenue and
expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods in connection
with the proprietary fund's principal operations. The principal operating revenue of the
Water and Sanitary Sewer funds are charges to customers for sales and services
provided. The rates billed in the Water Utility are approved by the Public Service
Commission. Sanitary sewer charges are billed at rates established by City policy based
on the charges received from the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewage District.

Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services,
administration and depreciation on capital assets. Revenue and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as non-operating revenue and expenses.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. MEASUREMENT FOcus, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (continued)

All Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported
amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenue and expenditures/
expenses during the reporting period. Actua! results could vary from those estimates.

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR FUND BALANCE
1. Cash and Investments

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

The City of Franklin maintains two investment policies. The first covers all funds except
fiduciary funds for retiree health purposes. The objective of this policy is to generate
current income, consistent with safety and reasonable risk as defined under prudent
person rules. As operating reserves the quality, liquidity and maturity structure of the
portfolio are most important. The investment policy:

a. Requires a minimum rating at time of purchase of AA by either Moody's or
Standard & Poor’s.

b. Limits an issuer to 10% or less and asset classes to 35% or less of the market
value of the portfolio with the exception of U.S. Government Treasury, Agency and
securities that have the full faith guarantee of the U.S. Government.

c. Specifies a minimum amount of cash equivalents be maintained, an average life of
the portfolio not exceeding 2 ¥ years and no individual issue with a maturity
exceeding 5 years at the date of purchase.

d. Limits investments highly sensitive to market changes through its duration and
diversification policies.

e. Prohibits the investment in foreign owned securities.

f. Limits derivative investments to those with a final maturity of seven years or less.

In addition the City’s investment policy restricts allowable investments to investments
that follow state statutes that limits investments to:

a. Time deposits in any credit union, bank, savings bank, trust company or loan
association authorized to transact business in the state and maturing in three
years or less.

The Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).

¢. Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government

o
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

D.

f.

g.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (continued)

. Cash and Investments (continued)

Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district
village, town or school district of the State of Wisconsin. Also, bonds issued by a
local exposition district, a local . professional baseball park district, a local
professional football stadium district, a cultural arts district, or by the University of
Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority.

. Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second

highest rating category assigned of a nationally recognized rating agency.
Securities of an open-ended management Investment company or investment trust
subject to various conditions and investment options.

Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions.

The second investment policy is for its fiduciary fund for retiree health purposes. The

policy:

P o

i 01]

D

Requires the investment to be in a section 115 frust for retiree health purposes.
Requires management by an outside investment manager.

Requires compliance with the “prudent person” standard.

Requires asset allocation policy that considers the liability stream of benefits, the
relationship to current and projected assets, the historical performance of capital
markets and the perception of future economic conditions.

Primary investment objectives are safety, diversification and return.

Allows investment in various asset classes.

. Limits investment in equities after five years to 75% of total assets to be invested.

During the first five years equity investments may be up to 100% of the assets.

The City manages the various risks in its cash and investments as follows:

a.

=g

- Custodial credit risk — investments are held by trustee or third party custodian.

— deposits in excess of FDIC insurance limits are maintained
in the State LGIP or collateralized bank balances in
amounts at least 75% of the year end cash balances.

Credit risk — securities purchased need to have a AA or better investment rating.
Concentration of credit risk - issuer or asset class not to exceed 10% of the
market value of the portfolio with the exception of U.S. issued securities.

Interest rate risk — managed by limiting the length of maturity and the average life
of the portfolio.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQuITY {(continued)

1. Cash and Investments (continued)

Investments are stated at fair value, which is the amount at which an investment could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. Fair values are based on
quoted market prices. No investments are reported at amortized cost. Adjustments
necessary to record invesiments at fair value are recorded in the operating statement as
increases or decreases in investment income. Investment income on commingled
investments of City accounting funds is allocated based on average investment balances.

The Wisconsin Local Government Invesiment Pool (LGIP) is part of the State Investment
Fund (SIF), and is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission, but operates under the
statutory authority of Wisconsin Chapter 25. The SIF reports the fair value of its
underlying assets annually. Participants in the LGIP have the right to withdraw funds in
total on one day's notice. At December 31, 2009, the fair value of the City's share of
LGIP assets was substantially equal to the amount reported in these statements.

2. Receivables

Property taxes are levied in December on the assessed value as of the prior January 1.
[n addition to property taxes for the municipality, taxes are collected for and remitted to
the state government, county government, local school districts, technical college district
and metropolitan sewerage district. Taxes for all other governmental units billed in the
current year for the succeeding year are reflected as receivables and due to other taxing
units on the accompanying fiduciary funds statement of fiduciary net assets.

Property tax calendar — 2009 tax roll:

Lien date and levy date December 2009
Tax bills mailed December 2009
Payment in full, or January 31, 2010
First installment due January 31, 2010
Second installment due March 31, 2010
Third instaliment due May 31, 2010
Personal property taxes in fuil January 31, 2010
Final tax settlement with County August 20, 2010
"Tax deed by County — 2008
Delinquent real estate taxes October 2012

Accounts receivable have been shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. No
provision for uncollectible accounts receivable has been made for enterprise funds
because of their right by law to place delinquent bills on the tax roll.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (continued)

2. Receivables (continued)

During the course of operations, transactions occur between individual funds that may
result in amounts owed between funds. Short-term interfund loans are reported as "due
to and from other funds”. Long term interfund loans are reported as “advances from and
to other funds”. Interfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental
activities are eliminated in the statement of net assets. Any residual balances
outstanding between the governmental activities and the proprietary activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.

In the governmental fund financial statements, advances to other funds are offset equally
by a fund balance reserve account which indicates that they do not constitute expendable
available financial resources and, therefore, are not available for appropriation.

3. Inventories and Prepaid items

Governmental fund inventory items, except fuel inventory, are charged to expenditures
when purchased. The fuel inventory is recorded at cost on a first in first out basis using
the consumption method of accounting. Year end inventory was not significant.
Proprietary fund inventories are generally used for construction and for operation and
maintenance work. They are not for sale. Material and supplies on hand at year end are
considered immaterial,

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and
are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

4. Restricted Assets

Mandatory segregation of assets are presented as restricted assets. Such segregation is
required by bond agreements and other external parties. Current liabilities payable from
restricted assets are so classified. The excess of restricted assets over current liabilities
will be used first for retirement of related long-term debt. The remainder, if generated
from earnings, is shown as restricted net assets,

5. Capital Assets
Government-Wide Statements

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as
assets with an initial cost of more than $1,000 for general capital assets and $10,000 for
infrastructure assets with estimated useful life of two years or more. Capital assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual amounts are not available.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (continued)

5. Capltal Assets (contlnued)
Government-Wide Statements (continued)

Additions to and reptacements of capital assets of business-type activities are recorded
at original cost, which includes material, labor, overhead, and an allowance for the cost
of funds used during construction-when-significant. For tax-exempt debt, the amount of
interest capitalized equals the interest expense incurred during construction netted
against any interest from temporary investment of borrowed fund proceeds. No net
interest was capitalized during the current year. The cost of renewals and betterments
relating to retirement units is added to plant accounts. The cost of property replaced,
retired or otherwise disposed of, is deducted from plant accounts and, generally,
together with removal costs less salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the
statement of activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net
assets. Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method of depreciation. The range of useful lives by asset type of follows:

Buildings and improvements 20-50 Years
Machinery and Equipment 2-30 Years
Water and sewer systems 20-100 Years
Infrastructure 30-90 Years

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition.
Capital assets used in proprietary fund operatlons are accounted for the same in the
government-wide statements.

6. Other Assets

In governmental funds, debt issuance costs are recognized as expenditures in the
current period. For the government-wide and proprietary fund type financial statements,
debt issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the term of the debt issue.

7. Compensated Absences
Under terms of employment, employees may earn compensatory time and are granted

sick leave, severance pay and vacations in varying amounts. Only benefits considered to
be vested are disclosed in these statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

D. ASSETs, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (coniinued)

7. Compensated Absences (continued)

All vested compensatory time, severance pay and vacation pay are accrued when
incurred in the government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements, A
liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured,
for example, as a result of employee resignations or retirements and are payable with
expendable available resources.

Payments for vested compensatory time, severance pay and 'vacation pay will be made
at rates in effect when the benefits are used. Accumulated vested compensatory time,
severance pay and vacation pay liabilities are determined on the basis of current salary
rates and include salary related payments.

8. Long-term Obligations/Conduit Debt

All long-term obligations to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources
are reported as liabilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term obligations
consist primarily of notes and bonds payable and accrued compensated absences.

Long-term obligations for governmental funds are not reported as liabilities in the fund
financial statements. The face value of debt (plus any premium) is reported as other
financing sources and payments of principal and interest are reported as expenditures.
The proprietary fund accounting is the same as it is in the government-wide statements.

For the government-wide and proprietary fund statements, issuance costs, bond
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the issue using the
effective interest method. Gains or losses on prior refundings are amortized over the
remaining life of the old debt, or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. The
balance’ at year end for both premiums/discounts and gains/losses, as applicable, is
shown as an increase or decrease in the liability section of the statement of net assets.

The City has approved issuance of industrial development revenue bonds (IDRB) for'the
benefit of private business enterprises. |DRB’'s are secured by mortgages or revenue
agreements on associated projects of the business enterprises. The IDRB,s do not
constitute indebtedness of the City. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities
in the financial statements.

9. Claims and Judgments
Claims and judgments are recorded as liabilities if all the conditions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board pronouncements are met. Claims and judgments that would
normally be liquidated with expendable .available financial resources are recorded during
the year as expenditures in the government funds.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQuITY (contanued)

9. Claims and Judgments {continued)

[f they are not to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources, no liability
is recognized in governmental fund financial statements. The related expenditure is
recognized when the liability is liquidated. Claims and judgments are recorded in the
government-wide statements and proprietary funds as expenses when the related
liabilities are incurred. There were no significant claims or judgrents at year end.

10. Equity Classifications
Government-Wide Statements
Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — Consists of capital assets including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances {(excluding any unspent bond proceeds) of any bonds,
mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to .the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets.

b. Restricted net assets — Consists of net assets with constraints placed on their use
either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or
regulations of other governments or, 2) law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

e Unrestricted net assets — All other net assets that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt”.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

Fund Statements

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified
as reserved and unreserved. Reserved fund balance is that portion of fund balance that
is not available for the subsequent year's budget due to legal restrictions or resources
which are not available for current spending. Unreserved fund balance includes funds set
aside by management for specific uses, which are labeled “designated”. The balance of
unreserved fund balance is labeled undesignated" which indicates it is available for
appropriation. Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide
statements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2000

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQWTY {continued)
11. Comparative data

The basic financial statements include comparative data for the prior year for individual
enterprise funds in the fund financial statements in order to provide an understanding of
the changes in financial position and operations of these funds. This comparative data is
not at the level of detail required for a presentation in conformity with general accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with
the City’'s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2008 from which the
data was derived.

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of Certain differences between the Governmental Fund Balance
Sheet and the Statement of Net Assets '

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance —
total governmental funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the
government-wide statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains
that “other long term assets that are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and therefore are deferred in the funds”. The details of this difference are as follows:

Special assessments $2,277,777
Accrued interest receivable . 57,102
$2,334,879-

Capital assets used in government funds are not financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds.

LLand ' $24,664,244

Buildings 23,924,476
Machinery and equipment 14,934,355
Infrastructure 85,791,859
Construction in progress 151,662
Less: Accumulated depreciation {34,190,437)

Adjustment for capital assets $115,276,159
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of Certain differences between the Governmental Fund Balance
Sheet and the Statement of Net Assets (continued)

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City’'s governmental activities are not due and
payable in the current period, and accordingly, are not reported as fund liabilities.
" Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is recognized
as an expenditure when due. All liabilities-both current and long-term-are reported in the
statement of net assets.

General obligation debt $45,165,000

Deferred amounts for premiums 259,009
Unamaortized debt issue costs (181,969)
Unamortized deferred refunding amouns (459,152)
Compensated absences 1,561,617
Net pension obligation 110,182
Accrued interest 587,536

Combined adjustment for long-term liabilities $47.052,233

B. Explanation of Certain differences between the Governmental Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the
Government-wide Statement of Activities

The governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund
balances include a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total
governmental funds and changes in net assets of governinental activities as reported in
the government wide statement of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains
that “revenue in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenue in the funds”. The details of this difference are as follows:

Special assessment levies ' $528,080
Accrued interest receivable 57.102

Net adjustment’to increase net changes in fund balances —
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net
assets of governmental activities 585,182
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

B. Explanation of Certain differences between the Governmental Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the
Government-wide Statement of Activities (continued)

Another element of that reconciliation states that “Governmental funds report the effects
of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar items when the debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortlzed in the statement of activities.” The
details of the differences are as follows:

Amortization of issuance costs $(34,345)
Amortization of deferred refunding amounts (95,451)
Amortization of premium 68,533

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances —
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net
assets of governmental activities $(61.263)

Another element of that reconciliation states that “some expenses reported in the
statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds’™. The details of this
difference are as follows:

Compensated absences $(22,745)
Net pension obligations 6,129
Accrued interest payable 158,930

Net adjustments to increase net changes in fund balances —
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net
assets of governmental activities 142

Another element of that reconciliation states that “revenue in the governmental funds that
provides current financial resources but have been previously recorded as revenue in the
statement of activities”. The details of this difference are as follows:

Special assessment collections $506.671
Net adjustments to decrease net changes in fund balances —
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net
assets of governmental activities 50 1
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 3 - STEWARDSRIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgetary information is derived from the annual operating budget and is presented
using the same basis of accounting for each fund as described in Note 1 C with the
exception of encumbrances and tax equivalent from the Water Utility. Actual {budgetary
basis) expenditures presented reflect actual (GAAP) expenditures adjusted for
expenditures liquidated under the prior period budget and encumbrances expected to be
liguidated under the current period budget. Actual (budgetary basis) revenue present the
tax equivalent from the Water Utility as tax revenue while the GAAP basis statements
present this item as a transfer.

A budget has been adopted for the General, Debt Service, Library, Capital Cutlay,
Equipment Replacement, Capital Improvement, Street Improvement, Sanitary Sewer and
Water Utility funds. Budgets have not been formally adopted for other funds.

The budget amounts presented include any amendments made during the year. The City
may authorize transfers of budget amounts within departments. Transfers between
departments and changes to the overall budget must be approved by a two-thirds vote of
the common council. Supplemental appropriations during the year were not significant,
Appropriations lapse at the end of the year unless specifically carried over. Carryovers
to the following year were not material. Budgets are adopted at the function ievel of
expenditure. '

B. LIMITATIONS ON THE CITY’S TAX LEVY

As part of Wisconsin's Act 28 (2009), new legislation was passed that continues the
limitation of the City's future tax levies. Generally, the City is limited to its prior tax levy
dollar amount (excluding TIF districts), increased by the greater of the percentage
change in the City's equalized value due to new construction, or 3.0%% for the 2009 levy
collected in 2010. Unused tax levy may be carried forward into the following year.
Changes in debt service from one year to the next are generally exempt from this limit.
The levy limit is set to expire after the 2010 levy.

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is utilized by all funds. Each fund’s
portion of this pool is displayed on the statement of net assets and balance sheet as

cash and investments of the City. In addition, investments are separately held by several
of the funds.

Deposits in each local and area bank are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000
for interest bearing accounts and unlimited for non or low interest bearing accounts.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

The City's bank accounts are also insured by the State of Wisconsin Deposit Guarantee
Fund in the amount of $400,000. However, aithough the fund had reserves available at
December 31, 2009, the future availability of resources to cover the losses cannot be
projected because provisions of the 1985 Wisconsin Act 35 provided that the amount in
the fund will be used to repay public depositors for losses until the appropriation is
exhausted at which time the fund is abolished.

Investments in the local government investment pool are covered under a surety bond
issued by Financial Security Assurance, Inc. The bond insures against losses arising
from principal defaults on substantially all types of securities acquired by the pool except
U.S. Government and agency securities. The bond provides unlimited coverage on
principal losses, reduced by FDIC and State of Wisconsin Deposit Guarantee Fund
insurance. This coverage expired on February 15, 2009.

The City maintains a collateral arrangement with its main bank to provide collateralization
in excess (about 20%) of deposits maintained at the bank. The collateral is maintained at
the Federal Reserve and the City receives monthly reports of the collateral in place. The
collateral balance at December 31, 2009 was $44,242,243. Cash and investments as
shown on the December 31, 2009 City of Franklin Statement of Net Assets are subject to
the following risks:

Carrying Bank & Investment
Value Balances Risks

Cash and demand deposits $ 16,717,127 % 3,800,203 Custodial
Money market funds 86,335 86,335 Credit and interest rate
U.S. treasuries and agencies 7,358,983 7,358,983 Credt, interest rate
. and concentration of credit
Asset backed securities 769,378 769 378 Credit and interest rate
Corporate bonds 2,979,401 2,979401 Credt, interest rate

. - and concentration of credit
Equities 1,198,784 1,198,784 Custodial
Local Government Investment Pool 33,000,549 33,000,548  Credit

Total

$ 62,110,657 § 49,293,633

Reconciliation to the financial statements is shown below:

Per Statement of Net Assets
Primary Government:
Unrestricted cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments

Per Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets - Agency Funds

$ 13,627,635
227,388

46,981,634
1,273,900

$ 62,110,567

- Post Employment Benefits Trust

Page 55



CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2008

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

. Custodial Credit Risk For deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of
a financial institution failure, the City's deposits may not be returned to the City. As of
December 31, 2009 of the City's total bank balances of $3,900,203, $2,015,923 was
uninsured and uncollateralized and therefore exposed to custodial credit risk. For
Investments — Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral .
securities in the possession of an outside party. The City does not have any investments
that were exposed to custodial credit risks at December 31, 2008.

Credit Risk Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty wiil not fulfill its
obligation. The City's policy requires a minimum credit rating of AA at time of purchase.
The City's fixed income investments subject to credit risk include treasuries, agencies,
corporate asset backed securities, corporate bonds and money market funds and were
rated by Moody's Investor Service.

As of December 31, 2009, 24.7% of the investments were in rated fixed income
investments and subject to credit risk. The ratings were as follows: AAA at 73.4%, AA2 at
3.3%, AA3 at 1.6%, A1 at 9.2%, A2 at 3.2% and A3 at 9.3%. Fixed income investments
include corporate securities (asset backed and bonds) at 8.3%, treasury and agency
securities at 16.2% and money market funds at 0.2%. The Local Government Investment
Pool was 72.7% of the investments and is not rated but is subject to credit risk and
equities held in trust at 2.6% make up the remainder of the invesiments.

Concentration of Credit Risk Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to
a large investment position in a single issuer. As of the December 31, 2009 no issue
other than the Local Government Investment Pool, treasury or agency securities had a
position of greater than five percent of the portfolio.

Interest Rate Risk Interest rate risk is the risk that rising interest rates will have an
adverse impact on the fair value of the investments in the portfolio. The longer the
maturities in the portfolio the greater the risk of loss is in porifolio value.

As of December 31 , 2009 the City's investments were as followé:

Fair Investment Maturity in years
Investment Type ( in thousands) Value Less than 1 1-5 Over 5

Money market funds $ 86,335 % 86,335 $ - § -
U.S. treasuries and agencies 7,358,983 436,122 6,922,861 -
Asset backed securities 769,378 225,539 543,839 -
Corporate bonds 2,979,401 1,360,898 1,618,503 -
Local Government investment Pool 33,000,548 33,000,549 ’ - -

Total $ 44194646 $ 35109443 $ 9,085,203 $ -
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {continued)

B. RECEIVABLES

Receivables consist of accounts, taxes, notes and special assessments from citizens and
others. Receivables are reported net of uncollectible amounts. The reserve for bad
debts, principally for personal property taxes and ambulance revenue, was $101,808 at
December 31, 2009. Other than the note receivable and special assessment
receivables, all other receivables are expected to be collected within one year.

The City has a note receivable with a local business in the amount of $8,785,000. Terms
of the note call for semi-annual payments of interest at 1.95% and annual principal
ranging from $625,000 to $670,000 until maturity on February 28, 2014, at that time the
remaining balance will be due.

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenue
that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.
Property taxes receivable for the subsequent year are not earned and can not be used to
liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue
recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At
the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred and unearned
revenue reported in the financial statements were as follows:

Unavailable Uneamed Total
Govemmental Funds: ]
Property taxes receivable $ - $ 28357925 $ 28,357,925
Interest receivable 57,102 - 57,102
Special assessments not yet due 2277777 . - 2,277,777
Total deferred/unearned revenue
for governmental funds $ 2,334879 $ 28357,925 $ 30,692,804

C. RESTRICTED ASSETS

In accordance with the City's ordinance enacting a sewer user charge system and
regulations of the Department of Natural Resources, the Sanitary Sewer Fund - an
Enterprise Fund, incorporated an equipment replacement charge as a component of the
rate structure to be used for significant mechanical equipment replacement as required
by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources. Revenue generated from this
charge are accumulated and used for replacement of certain equipment. The balance in
this account at December 31, 2009 is $227,388.

Page 57



CITY OF FRANKLIN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

D. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2009 was as follows:

- Beginning Ending
Governmental Activities Balance Additions Dispositions Balance
Capital assets not depreciated:
Land $ 24,648,453 $ - 15,791 § - $ 24,664,244
Canstruction in progress 1,624,809 151,662 {1,624,809) 151,662
Total capital assets not depreciated 26,273,262 - - 167,453 {1,624,808) 24,815,906
Capital assets depreciated:
Buildings & improvements 23,069,585 854,891 - 23,924,476
Machinery & equipment 14,223,837 1,143,891 (433,373) . 14,934,355
Infrastructure 81,281,205 4,510,654 - 85,791,859
Total capital assets depreciated 118,574,627 6,508,436 {433,373) 124,650,690
Less: Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & improvements 5,839,619 535,805 - 6,375,424
Machinery & equipment 8,350,215 838,756 (433,373) 8,755,508
Infrastructure 17,668,113 1,391,302 - 19,059,415
Total accumulated depreciation 31,857,947 2,765,863 {433,373) 34,190,437
Net capital assets depreciated 86,716,680 3,743,573 - 90,460,253
Govemmetal Activities Capital Assets, :
Net of Accumulated Depreciation $ 112,989,842 § 3,911,026

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental Activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health & human services
Culture & recreation

Conservation & development

Total governmental activities depreciation expense
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CITY OF FRANKLIN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

D. CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Dispositions Balance
Business-type Activities
Capital Assets not depreciated:
Land 426,384 % 3,500 3 - 429,884
Canstruction in progress 611,614 4,229 (559,614) 56,229
Total capital assets not depreciated 1,037,998 7,729  {559,614) 486,113
Capital assets depreciated:
Buildings & improvements 2,322,250 - - 2,322,250
Machinery & eguipment 1,975,076 632,511 (71,875) 2,535,712
Infrastructure | 105,178,334 1,480,317 (158,434) 106,500,217
Total capital assets depreciated 108,475,660 2,112,828 (230,309) 111,358,179
Less: Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & improvements 727,298 73,672 ~ 800,970
Machinery & equipment 1,325,143 118,013 (71,874) 1,371,282
infrastructure 17,618,731 1,285,315 (60,565) 18,843,481
Total accumulated depreciation 19,671,172 1,477,000 (132,439) 21,015,733
Net capital assets depreciated 89,804,488 635,828 (87,870) 90,342,446

Business-type Activities Capital Assets,

Net of Accumulated Depreciation $ 90,842,486 $

643,557

$(657,484) $ 90,828,559

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows.
Business-Type Activities:
Water

Sewer
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

The interfund receivables and payables at December 31, 2009 are as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Am ount
Governmental funds:

General Water Utility $ 65551
Enterprise funds: :

Sanitary Sewer Water Utility 45,183
Subtotal - Fund Financial Statements 110,734
Less: Fund eliminations 45183
Totalintemal balances - Government-Wide

Statement of Net Assets $ 65551

The principal purpose of these interfund balances result from the time lag between the
dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures
occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system and (3) payments between
funds are made. In all cases amounts are repaid within one year.

For the statement of net assets, interfund balances owed within the governmental
activities or business ~ type activities are netted and eliminated.

The City of Frankliin provides short and long term advances to its TIF Districts. The
amounts advanced are either from proceeds of a borrowing or from fund reserves. They
are used to enable the TIF Districts to carry out approved project plans and may be
replaced in the future by direct borrowing. The TIF Districts interest rate is based upon
the interest rate incurred by the Debt Service Fund on it's borrowings or the reinvestment
rate available to other funds. The advances will be repaid as the proportionate principal
amounts in the Debt Service Fund are due or when TIF District resources are available.

Amounts not
due within
Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount one year
Govemmental funds:
Debt Service TIF Districts $ 2,018,000 $ 1,618,000
Capital Projects-Development TIF Districts 2,645,000 2,645,000
Capital Projects-Equipment Replacement  TIF Districts 800,000 -
Internal Service-Self Insurance TIF Districts 600,000 -
Less: Fund eliminations (6,063,000)
Total long-term advances - Gove mment-Wide .
. Statement of Net Assets $ -
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS {continued)

Generally, transfers are used to (1) move revenue from the funds that collect them to the
fund that the budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt
service from the funds collecting the receipts to the Debt Service Fund and {3) use
unrestricted revenue collected in the General Fund to finance various programs
accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

Transfers during the year ended December 31, 2009 were as follows:

Transfer In Transfer Qut . Amount
General Enterprise - Water Utility - $ 920,666
Enterprise - Sanitary Sewer . 2,614
Debt Service Capital Projects - Development 23,190
Special Revenue: : -
Civic Celebrations General 25,900
Grant Donations 723
Capital Projects Funds: X
Capital Improvements Capital Projects - Utility Improvement 412,119
Capital Projects - Development 405,459
TiF Districts 351,541
Utility Improvement Capital Projects - Capital Improvement 86,824
Subtotal - Fund financial statements ' 2,229,036
Less: Fund eliminations (1,305,756)
Less: Government-wide eliminations (1,024,006)

Total transfers - Government-wide Statement of Activities $ (100,726)
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

F. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS
General Obligation Debt

Long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2009 were as follows: :
Amounts

Balance Balance due within
12/31/08 Additions Deletions - 12/31/09 one year

Govermnmental Activities

General obligation debt $ 56,080,000 $ - $ 10,915,000 $ 45,165,000 $ 5,275,000
Unamortized premium 327,542 - 68,533 259,009 68,635
Deferred refunding amounts (554,593) - (95,451) (459,142) (83,529)
Sub-total 55,852,949 - 10,888,082 44 964,867 5,260,006
Compensated absences
Accrued vacation pay 375,930 844,575 838,934 381,571 381,571
Accrued severance pay 1,021,457 85,531 77,266 1,029,722 -
Accrued compensatory time 141,485 216,481 207,642 150,324 150,324
Total compensated absences 1,538,872 1,146,587 1,123,842 1,561,617 531,895

Govemment activities

Long-term liahilities $ 57,391,821 $ 1,146,587 § 12,011,924 $ 46,526,484 $ 5,791,901

All general obligation notes and bonds payable are backed by the full faith and credit of the
City. The notes and bonds will be retired by future property tax levies, special assessment
collections and designated landfill revenue.

The governmental activities compensated absences accrue to and are paid from the City's
General Fund,

Business-type Activities
Compensated absences

Accrued vacation pay $ 37373 $ 45867 $ 46082 $§ 37158 $ 37,158
Accrued severance pay 80,633 5,803 6,358 80,078 -
Accrued compensatory time 4,138 3,318 4,338 3,118 3,118

Business-type activities

Long-term liabilities $ 122144 $§ 54,988 $ 56778 $§ 120354 $ 40276



CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2008

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

F. LLONG TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Details of general obligation notes and bonds payable are as follows:

Balance
Date of  Interest Principal Interest Original Outstanding
Type Issue Rate Payable Payable _ - Amount 12131

General obligation promissory notes
8/15/05 3.75-3.90 3/1/07-15 3/1& 9/1 $ 10,000,000 $ 9,000,000

1/1/06 3.76-3.90 3/1/09-11 3M& 9/1 10,000,000 7,700,000
1/3/07 4.95 3/1/08-14 31& 91 10,000,000 8,785,000
8/26/08 3.00-3.50 3/1/09-14 3/1& 91 10,000,000 9,800,000
General cbligation bonds .
4/15/01 4.3-5.40  3/1/02-21 31& 9/1 10,000,000 155,000
General obligation refunding bonds
1/3/07 3.80 3/1/08-21 3M1& 91 18,925,000 9,725,000
$ 45,165,000

Annual principal and intergst payments to maturlty on general obligation notes and bonds
payable are as follows:

Balance
Outstanding
Year Principal interest Total 12/31

2009 . $ 45,165,000
2010 . % 5275000 $ 1,688989 $ 6,963,989 39,890,000
2011 7,395,000 1,440,330 8,835,330 32,495,000
2012 4,675,000 1,208,524 5,883,524 27,820,000
2013 5,640,000 1,014,820 6,654,820 22,180,000
2014 12,365,000 641,526 13,006,526 8,815,000
2015 -2019 7,490,000 1,038,120 8,528,120 2,325,000

2020 - 2021 2,325,000 89,205 2,414,205 -

$ 45,165000 § 7,121,514 $ 52,286,514

The City's statutdry debt limit and margin of indebtedness at December 31, 2009 are
$195,632,130 and $150,467,130, respectively.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

F. LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS {continued)

In prior years the City defeased certain maturities of the April 15, 2001 general obligation
bonds by placing the proceeds of new debt in irrevocable trust to provide for all future
debt service payments on the old debt. Accordingly, trust account assets and liability for
the defeased debt is not included in the City's financial statements. At December 31,
2009 $9,470,000 of debt outstanding has been defeased. The defeased debt is callable
on March 1, 2011.

Conduit Debt Obligations

Ten series of Industrial Revenue Bonds originally issued with an aggregate principal
amount of $114,485,000 are outstanding with a December 31, 2009 balance of
$106,554,056.

G. NET ASSETS/FUND BALANCES

Governmental Activities
Government activities net assets reporied on the government-wnde statement of net
assets at December 31, 2009 include the following:

Invested in caplital assets, net of related debt

Land $ 24,664,244
Construction in process 151,662
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 90,460,253
Less: related long term debt outstanding (28,820,121)
Total invested in capital assets 86,456,038
Restricted for:
Library . 458,216
Emergency medical services 10,598
Utility improvement 147 317
Development , 406,562
Donations 132,236
Grants 136,896
Total restricted ' 1,291,825
Unrestricted 2,024 676
Total governmental activities net asseis $ 89,772,539
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

G. NET ASSETS/FUND BALANCES (continued)

Governmental Fund Balances

Reported on the fund financial statements at December 31, 2009 include the following:

Reserved - Major Funds:
General Fund - Inventories, prepaid items and encumbrances
Debt Service Fund - subsequent year debt service
Debt Service Fund ~ advances to other funds
TIF Districts Fund - contractual obligations and debt service
Reserved - Non Major funds:
Special Revenue Funds:
Library services including prepaid expenses
Emergency medical services, donations and grants
Capital Projects Funds:
Equipment replacement & Development - Advances to other funds
Capital Outlay and Equipment replacement - encumbrances
Capital Improvement - contracual obligations & encumbrances
Development .
Utility Improvement

Total reserved

Unreserved Major Fund - General Fund
Designated for working capital
" Designated for subsequent year expenditures
Undesignated
Total General Fund
Unreserved Major Fund - TiF Districts Fund
Undesignated (Deficit)
Unreserved Non Major Funds:
Special Revenue funds:
Designated for master plan activities
Designated for civic celebration activities
Total Special Revenue funds
Capita! Projects funds:
Designated for Capital Outlay
Designated for Equipment Replacement
Undesignated for Capital Improvement
Designated for Street Improvement
Total Capital Projects funds
Total Unreserved funds

Page 656

$

25,927
60,900
2,018,000
9,152,000

458,216
279,730

3,445,000
" 1,000
151,000
406,562
147,317

16,145,652

3,570,000
400,000
- 1,108,711

5,078,711

(5,734,740)

107,778
57,570

165,348

338,817
774,621
(103,154)
216,687

1,226,971

736,290




CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 5 — OTHER INFORMATION

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS
Wisconsin Retirement System

All eligible protective City of Franklin employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement
System (“System”), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit public employee
retirement system (“PERS"). All such permanent employees expected to work over 600
hours a year are eligible to participate in the System, Covered employees in the general
category are required by statute to contribute 5.9% of their salary (5.0% for protective
occupations with social security, and 3.2% for protective occupations without social
security) to the plan.

Employers may make these contributions to the plan on behalf of the employees.
Employers are required to contribute an actuarially determined amount necessary to fund
the remaining projected cost of future benefits.

The payroll for employees covered by the System for the year ended December 31, 2009
was $7,591,158 and the employer’s total payroli was $13,497,798. The total required
contribution paid entirely by the employer for the year ended December 31, 2009 was
$1,495,458, or 19.7% of covered payroll. Of the total required contribution, 100 percent
was contributed for the current year. Total contributions for the years ended December
31, 2008 and 2007 were $1,404,643 and $1,275,929, respectively which equal to the
required contributions for each year.

The System provides protective employees who retire at or after age 53 with 25 years or
more of service or age 54 with less than 25 years of service are entitled to receive
retirement benefits. Protective employees may retire at age 50 and receive actuarially
reduced benefits. The factors influencing the benefit are: (1) final average earnings, {2)
years of creditable service and (3) a formula factor. Final Average Earnings is the
average of the protective employee’s three highest year's earnings. Protective
employees terminating covered employment before becoming eligible for retirement
benefits may withdraw their contributions and, by doing so, forfeit all rights to any
subsequent benefits. For employees beginning participation after January 1, 1990 and no
longer actively employed on or after April 24, 1998, creditable service in each of five
years is required for eligibility for a retirement annuity. Participants employed prior to
1990 and on or after April 24, 1998 are immediately vested.

The System also provides death and disability benefits for employees. Eligibility for and
the amount of all benefits is determined under Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes.
The System issues an annual financial report that may be obtained by writing to the
Department of Employee Trust Funds, P.O. Box 7931, Madison, W| 53707-7931.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 5 — OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS {continued)

Public Works Employees Pension Plan

Plan Description

The City is also a participant in the City of Franklin Public Works Employees' Pension
Plan, a non-contributory single employer defined benefit pension plan covering eligible
public works employees. The assets of this Plan are administered by Principal Life
Insurance Company. An annual financial report may be obtained by writing to the plan
administrator at Principal Financial Group, P.O. Box 9693, Des Moines, IA 50306-9396.

Employees attaining the age of 60 are entitled to annual benefits of 1.98% of average
compensation multiplied by the number of complete years of service subsequent to
January 4, 1956, Average compensation is defined as the monthly total pay plus salary
deferrals, compensation and overtime received for the three consecutive years out of the
ten latest years which gives the highest average. Employees may retire early and
receive reduced benefits at age 55 with at least ten years of service.

Disability benefits equivalent to expected benefits at normal retirement date are paid until
normal retirement date, death or recovery. If an active employee dies, his or her
beneficiary receives a lump-sum cash payment equal to the participant's accumulation: at
date of death or an annuity benefit deferred until participant's earliest retirement date.

If an employee terminates his or her employment with the City, the employee has the
option of accepting either normal retirement benefits at normal retirement date, or a
lump-sum cash payment of participant's vested accumulations. An employee becomes
50% vested after five years of service’'and 100% vested after ten years.

Employees do not make pension contributions. The City contributes all amounts
necessary to fund the pension plan, using the aggregate actuarial cost method.

Funding Policy

The City's funding policy has been to provide yearly contributions at actuarially
determined rates that, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are designed to
accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due.

During 2008, the City changed the administration contract under which the plan is
administered. The impact of the change is that there are more investment options
available and as a result the annual pension cost was lower. The reduction related to the
interest rate assumption change occurred in the 2008 valuation with the impact of other
assumption changes occurring in the 2009 actuarial valuation.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 5 ~ OTHER INFORMATICN (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANs_(continued)

Public Works Employees Pension Plan (continued)

Annual Pension Cost

For 2009, the City's required contribution of $207,962 was determined during a
January 1, 2009 actuarial valuation using the aggregate actuarial cost method. As
a result during the year ended December 31, 2009, contributions totaling
$207,962 were accrued. This resulted in the net pension obligation being reduced
by $6,129. The accrued employer contribution amount represented 13.7% of
current year payroll compared to the 8.1% anticipated in the 2008 actuarial report.
The primary reason for the increase was the 2008 investment return.

. The aggregate actuarial cost method does not identify or separately amortize
unfunded actuarial liabilities. The amortization period is closed and has 12 years
remaining. Significant actuarial assumptions include: (a) a rate of return on the
investment of present and future assets ranging of 8.0% compounded annually,
(b) projected salary increases of 4.00% per year compounded annually,
attributable to inflation. The assumptions do not include post retirement benefit
increases. The actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that
smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over
a five-year period. '
Three Year Trend Information

Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contribuied Obligation
12/131/200¢ 3 207,962 100% $ 110,182
12/31/2008 99,781 11% 116,311
12/31/2007 252,283 47% 133,158

The following table shows the components of the City's annual pension cost for the year,
the amount actually contributed to the plan and changes in the City's net pension
obligation:

Annual required contribution $ 207,962
Interest on net pension obligation 9,305
Adjustment to annual required contribution (15,434)
Annual pension expense 201,833
Contributions made (207,862)
Decrease in net pension obligation (6,129)
Net pension obligation - beginning of year 116,311

Net pension obligation - end of year $ 110,182
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 5 — OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS {continued)
Public Works Employees Pension Plan {continued)
Annual Pension Cost

Funding pfogress

(A) (B) (€) (D) (E) (F)

Actuarial UAAL as
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Funded Percentage of
Valuation Asset Liability (AAL) AAL (UAAL) Ratio Covered Covered Payroll
Date Value - Aggregate [(B)-(A)] [(AY/(B)] Payroll KCY(E)]
1112009 $ 4,358,231 $4468413 $ 110,182 98% $ 1,521,581 7%

There were minor changes in actuarial assumptions during the valuation year ended
January 1, 2009 reflecting the change made in the administration contract in 2008. In
addition a change was made to-adopt a smoothing method for recognizing gains and
losses over a five year period. The multi year trend information is located in the required
supplementary information immediately following the notes to the financial statements.

B. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Based on City ordinances all eligible City of Franklin non-protective employees (except
public works employees) participate in the City of Franklin Defined Contribution Plan {the
“Plan”}. The Plan assets are administered by the Principal Life Insurance Company.

Employees after completing six months of service with the City are eligible to participate.
The Plan requires the City to make periodic contributions to each participant's account
equal to 10% of such participant's annual compensation. Employees may but are not
required to make contributions. A participant’s accrued benefit for City contributions is
100% vested and non forfeitable upon death, normal retirement, early retirement or
permanent and total disability as defined in the Plan. If employment is terminated for any
other reason, each participant's accrued benefit vests at various percentages, based on
years of service. During 2009, the City made the required contribution amounting to
$405,414, or 10% of covered payroll and employees made $6,959 in additional voluntary
contributions to the plan. The City may make amendments to the Plan.

C. PosT EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

The City of Franklin administers a single employer defined benefit post employment
benefit plan through a trust. The City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust is
accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting and presented as a fiduciary fund.
Separate financial statements are not prepared for the trust. Retiree and City
contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS {continued)

City of Franklin eligible full time employees meeting minimum age and service
requirements may receive group health care benefits at a reduced cost during the period
from their normal retirement date until they reach age 65. This results in an other post
employment benefit (OPEB) obligation for those groups. These groups commonly have
higher medical costs than anticipated in the blended premium rates that is referred to as
an implicit rate subsidy.

Contribution requirements are established by either City ordinance or collective
bargaining and may be amended oniy by the groups establishing the requirements. The
City's periodic contribution is determined and fixed at the time of retirement. The retiree
pays the balance of the periodic biended premium. The eligibility for the benefit follows:

Employee Group # City Amount Ade Years Service
Non-represented 37 75% of Premium at Retirement 62 20
Police 57 75% of 2007 Premium 53 15
Dispatch 14 75% of 2005 Premium 62 20
Fire 43 75% of Premium at Retirement 53 20
DPW 31 75% of Premium at Retirement 60 15

The City's annual other post employment benefit (OPEB) expense is calculated based
upon the annual required contribution (ARC) of the City. An actuarial calculation by an -
actuary was used to calculate the ARC and related information using the measurement
method required by GASB Statement No. 45 for employers with 200 or more total plan
members. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities over a period of 30 years. The following table shows the components of the
City's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the trust and
changes in the City's net OBEB obligation for retiree health benefits:

Annual required contribution $ 591,351
interest on net OPEB obligation -
Adjustment to annual required contribution _ .-
Annual QPEB expense 591,351
Contributions made {591,351)
Increase in net OPEB obligation -
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year -
Net QPEB obligation - end of year $ -

Page 70



CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 5§ — OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the
trust and the net OPER obligation for the current and prior year were as follows:

Fiscal Annual Percentage of Net
Year OPEB Annual OPEB CPEB
Ended Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
12/31/2009 § 591,351 _100.0% $ -
12/31/2008 703,713 100.0% -
Funding progress:
(&) (B8) (€ (D) (E) (F)
Actuarial UAAL as
Actuarial  Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Funded Percentage of
Valuation Asset Liability (AAL) AAL (UAAL) Ratio Covered Covered Payroll
Date Value Projected unit credit [(B)-(A)] [(AY(B)] Payroll {CY(EN
1/1/2009 $ 580,028 % 5,989,535 § 5,409,507 10% $ 12,137,498 45%

The multi year trend information is located in the required supplementary information
immediately following the notes to the financial statements. The projection of future
benefits for an ongoing benefit involves estimates for the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples
include assumptions about future employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trend.
Amounts determined regarding the funding status of the trust and required contributions
of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, presented immediately following the footnotes, presents multi-year trend
information that shows whether the -actuarial value of trust assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

The above schedules of empioyer confributions present trend information about the
amounts contributed to the trust by the City in comparison to the ARC, an amount
actuarially defermined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 43.
The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to
cover normal cost for each year and amortize any unfunded actuariai liabilities (or
funding excess) over a closed period of thirty years.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based upon the substantive
plan (the plan as understood by the City and plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing
benefit costs between the City and plan members to that point. The methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long
term perspective of the calculations.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 5 — OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

C. POosST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS {continued)

The trust's financial statements are prepared using the accrua! basis of accounting.
Retiree and City contributions are recognized in the period that contributions are due.
The City has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and
refunds are recognized when due and payable. Investments are reported at fair value
with the valuation determined by the independent custodian of the assets.

The following significant assumptions were made:
The actuarial valuation uses the projected unit credit actuarial cost method.

The ARC was caiculated using the level percentage of payroll method, amortizing costs
over 30 years. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2009 was 28 years.

Based upon the expected reiu_rn of the City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust
under the investment policy adopted for the Trust, a discount rate of 7% was used.

The actuarial value of the trust assets is determined using techniques that spread the
impact of short term volatility over a flve year period.

Group health charges for actives and retirees were used as the basis for calculation of
the present value of total benefits to be paid.

The expected healthcare trend rate of increase in group health charges was based upon
the recent experience of the City of Franklin self funded health care program, A rate of
0% for year one, 9.7% for year two, reduced to an ultimate rate of 5.2% after nineteen
years, was used. '

The expected long term payroll growth rate was assumed to be 3%.

Rates of. retirement, mortality and termination for reasons other than retirement and
death are from the "Wisconsin Retirement System 2003-2005 Experience Study”.

Marital status at retirement was assumed to be 75% with a spouse or dependants.
D. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The City at times is party to claims and legal proceedings. Although the outcome of such
matters in not presently determinable, it is the opinion of City management and the City
attorney that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings WI|| have a
material adverse effect on the City's fmanma{ position.

The City has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to
review and audit by the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for
reimbursements to the grantor agency for expenditures disaliowed under terms of the
grants. Management believes such disallowances, if any, would be immaterial.

Page 72



CITY OF FRANKLIN
'NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2009

NOTE 5 — OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

D. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (continued)

The City has no material outstanding contractual commitments other than disclosed in
these financial statements relating to various Public Works projects and equipment
purchases at December 31, 2009.

The City receives impact fees for new development projects. The fees are to be used to
fund specific projects within a specific period of time. In the event the projects are not
completed or the time period elapses, the City will be required to refund the impact fees
to owners of property that the fees were originally charged.

Funding for the operating budget of the City comes from many sources, including
property taxes, grants and aids from other units of government, user fees, fines and
permits and other miscellaneous revenue. The State of Wisconsin provides a variety of
aid and grant programs that benefit the City. Those aid and grant programs are
dependent on continued approval and funding by the Wisconsin governar and legislature,
through their budget process. The State of Wisconsin is currently experiencing budget
problems and is considering numerous alternatives including reducing aid to local
governments. Any changes made by the State to funding or eligibility of local aid
programs could have a significant impact on the future operating results of the City.

E. RISK MANANGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage or destruction
of assets, errors and omissions, natural disasters, and workers' compensation claims
that the City carries commercial insurance. No significant reductions in insurance
coverage occurred for any risk of loss in the past year, and settled claims have not
exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

The City als¢ offers a group medical and dental insurance plan to employees for which
the City is self-insured. This activity is accounted for in the City's Self Insurance Internal
Service Fund. Group medical and dental costs are charged to City departments and
retirees participating in the program. A third party administrator handles claims
payments. The City carries stop loss insurance for losses in excess of $50,000 per year
per individual. Liabilities are reported when it is probable that loss has occurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an estimated amount
for claims that have been incurred but not reported ("IBNR™).

Changes in the balance of claims payable for the three vears ended December 31 2009
are as follows:

Current )
Balance Claims and , Balance
Beginning Changes in Claims End
of Year Estimates Payments of Year
2008 $ 250,000 $ 2,627,082 $ 2,689,082 $ 188,000
2008 396,000 2,411,910 2,557,910 250,000

Page 73



CITY OF FRANKLIN

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(Unaudited)
December 31, 2009

PUBLIC WORKS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

(A) (B) (C) ©) (E) (F)
Actuarial UAAL as
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Funded Percentage of
Valuation Asset Liability (AAL) AAL (UAAL) Ratio Covered Covered Payroll
Date Value - Aggregate (B>-(A)] [{A/B) Payroll [(C(E)]
1/1/2008 $§ 4,358,231 $4,468413 § 110,182 98% $ 1,521,581 7%
1/1/2008 3,829,158 3,945 469 116,311 97% 1,358,310 9%
1112007 3,530,385 3,663,543 133,158 96% 1,256,564 11%

CITY OF FRANKLIN POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

(A) (B} (C) D) (E) (F)
Actuarial . UAAL as
Actuarial  Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Funded Percentage of
Valuation Asset Liability (AAL) AAL (UAAL)  Ratio Covered  Cowvered Payroll
Date Value Proiected unit credit [(B)-{A)] [{AY(B) Payroil {CY(E)]
11/2009 $ 580,028 $% 5,989,535 $ 5,409,507 10% $ 12,137,498 45%
1/1/2008 - 1,972,327 7,872,327 0% 11,725,456 68%

Note: the Trust was not yet in effect when the first actuarial valuation was completed.

. The study dated January 1, 2008 was the study prepared for the adoption of GASB #45.
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
debt service or major capital projects) that are restricted for specified purposes.

Library Oberating' Fund - This fund accounts for the budgetary operation of the City '
Library.

Library Auxiliary Fund - This fund accounts for the City Library's donations, fines and
forfeitures.

Master Plan Fund - This fund accounts for resources dedicated to improving the
Comprehensive Master Plan for the City.

Donation Fund - This fund accounts for donations received for specific purposes.

Civic Celebrations Fund - This fund accounts for activity related to the City's Fourth of
July, Fiftieth Anniversary or other celebrations.

Grant Fund — The City reports its grant activities in this fund. Grant activities include Fire
Department, Police Department, Health Department, Community Development Block
Grants and miscellaneous grants received by the City that are not accounted for
elsewhere.

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds).

Capitai Outlay Fund - This fund accounts for the departmental capital outlays. These
expenditures are funded by the tax levy, normally are less than $25,000 and are under
the direction of the department supervisor.

Equipment Replacement Fund - This fund accounts for the rolling stock replacement
program that accumulates annual funding (from property taxes) for replacement of
vehicles and similar equipment in lieu of using borrowed monies.

Capital Improvement Fund - This fund accounts for land acquisitions, building projects
and all public works projects and are usually funded with borrowed money or funding
from some other source other than the tax levy.

Street Improvement Fund - This fund accounts for the activities of the local road

improvement program. Funding is provided by the tax levy and a every other year local
road improvement grant from the State.

Utility Improvement Fund - This fund is used to account for water and sewer connection
fees that are used for water and sewer construction projects.

Development Fund - This fund is used to accolint for impact fees restricted for use to
capital improvements.
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Schedule 3

CITY OF FRANKLIN
General Fund
Schedule of Revenue - Budget and Actual {on a budgetary basis)
Year Ended December 31, 2009

Variance with

Original final budget -
and final Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavarable)
TAXES
General properly taxes $ 15,540,000 % 15,540,000 $ 15535375 $ (4,625)
Water Ultility - tax equivalent 820,000 920,000 923,280 3,280
Cable TV franchise fees 400,000 400,000 442,591 42,591
Mobile home assessments 36,000 36,000 27,5633 (8,467)
Motel room tax 200,000 200,000 125,520 (74,480)
17,096,000 17,096,000 17,054,299 {41,701)
INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE
State shared revenue 634,000 634,000 641,173 7,173
State expenditure restraint revenue 194,000 194,000 281,734 87,734
Fire insurance - dues 110,000 110,000 110,993 993
Local, state and federal grants and aids
Computer Aid 43,000 43,000 42,445 (555)
Transportation aids 1,310,000 1,310,000 1,346,480 36,480
Recycling 97,000 97,000 87,938 (9,062)
Other 3,000 3,000 28,019 25,019
2,391,000 2,391,000 2,538,782 147,782
LICENSES, FEES AND PERMITS
Licenses:
Beer and Liquaor 40,100 40,100 31,983 (8,117)
Bartenders 13,500 13,500 15,196 1,696
Amusement and related 10,000 10,000 11,995 1,995
Peddlers 29,000 28,000 34,980 5,980
Food and related 56,350 56,350 62,238 5,888
Electrical contractors 11,000 11,000 13,398 2,398
Dog and cat 10,000 10,000 9,010 (990)
Other 4,450 4,450 7,448 2,998
Permits; .
Building 413,000 413,000 250,312 (162,688)
Electrical 101,500 101,500 55,977 (45,523)
Plumbing 80,000 80,000 69,290 (10,710)
Sign 12,000 12,000 17,690 5,690
Park 8,500 8,500 11,429 2,928
Fire 6,500 6,500 5,961 (539)
Other 20,500 20,500 12,371 (8,129)
816,400 816,400 608,278 {207,122)
FINES, FORFEITURES AND PENALTIES 400,000 400,000 385,427 (14,573)
(Continued)
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Schedule 3

(concluded)
CITY OF FRANKLIN
General Fund
Schedule of Revenue - Budget and Actual (on a budgetary basis)
Year Ended December 31, 2009
Variance with
final budget -
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES
General government
Property reports and document fees 5 14,100 % 14,100 8,338 $ (5,762)
Public safety
Police Department and related 6,000 6,000 7,044 1,044
Ambulance service 1,175,000 1,175,000 866,148 (308,852)
Fire Department and related 177,000 177,000 134,657 (42,343)
Weights and measures 6,800 6,800 280 {6,520)
Public works
Weed cutting 25,100 25,100 14,090 (11,010)
Street lighting 3,000 3,000 1,000 (2,000}
Engineering and DPW fees 125,000 125,000 28,384 (96,616}
Landfill siting fees 20,000 20,000 17,009 (2,991)
Landfill tippage fees 423,600 423,600 384,620 {(38,980),
Health and human services ‘
Health Clinics and other health fees 75,000 75,000 55,848 {19,152y
Conservation and development
Zoning, subdivision and other filing fees 134,400 134,400 48,361 (86,039)
2,185,000 2,185,000 1,665,779 {619,221)
INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES 266,000 266,000 291,584 25,584
INVESTMENT EARNINGS 755,000 755,000 308,410 (356,590}
MISCELLANEOQUS REVENUE
Municipal property rental 34,000 34,000 34,015 15
Property sale 3,000 3,000 7,595 4,595
Refunds and reimbursements 35,500 35,500 34,870 (630)
Insurance dividend 15,000 15,000 86,803 71,803
Other revenue 19,100 19,100 1,101 (17,989)
106,800 106,600 164,384 57,784
TOTAL REVENUE $ 24,016,000 $ 24,016,000 $ 23,007,943 $ (1,008,057)
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Schedule 4

CITY OF FRANKLIN
General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual {on a budgetary basis)
Year Ended December 31, 2009

Variance with

final budget -
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
CURRENT
Goneral Government
Common council 8 97,987 § g7,687 § 92,239 § 5,748
Municipal court 170,030 170,030 176,549 (6,519}
City clerk 307,923 307,923 ' 206,893 11,030
Electicns 21,263 21,263 12,512 . 8,751
Information services 407,100 407,100 382,009 25,001
Administraton . 467,759 467,759 434,074 33,685
Finance . 538,602 538,602 510,451 28,151
Audit L 33,750 33,750 32,509 1,241
Assessor ' ' 239,839 239,839 228,682 11,157
Legal counsel 276,100 276,100 300,271 (24,171}
Municipal buildings 274,613 274,613 249,561 25,052
Property and liability insurance 67,200 67,200 58,102 9,098
Other 12,500 12,500 6,169 6,331
Contingency 665,000 647,000 - 647,000
Total Genera! Government 3,579,666 3,561,666 2,780,111 781,665
Public Safety
Police:
Paolice . 7,870,963 7,870,963 7,486,263 384,700
Dispatchers 1,022,006 1,022,006 937,178 84,828
Fire 5,859,902 5,859,902 5,633,37C¢ 226,532
Fire protection service charge 235,900 235,900 235,687 213
Building inspection 766,449 766,449 718,342 48,1067
Sealer of weights and measures 8,800 6,800 6,800 -
Total Public Safety 15,762,020 15,762,020 15,017,640 744,380
Public Works
Engineering 582,448 582,448 525,934 56,514
Highway . 2,434,709 2,452,709 2,334,551 118,158
Refuse collection 1,330,247 1,330,247 1,347,892 {(17,645)
Strest lighting 297,550 297,550 283,897 13,653
Weed control 25,100 25,100 13,337 11,763
Total Public Works 4,670,054 4,688,054 4,505,611 182,443
Health and Human Services
Public health 592,160 502,160 572,003 20,157
Animal conlrol . 44,700 44,700 47,552 {2,852)
Total Health and Human Services §36,860 §36,860 619,555 17,305
Culture and Recreation
St. Martin's fair 53,534 53,534 30,669 13,565
Civic celebrations 25,900 25,900 25,900 -
Senior activities and fravel program 15,000 15,000 11,310 3,680
Parks 134,891 134,881 104,808 30,083
Tolal Culiure and Recreation 229,325 229,325 181,887 47,338
Consarvation and Development
Flanning 447 075 447,075 344,442 102,633
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 25325000 §$25325,000 $23448346 $ 1,875,654
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CITY OF FRANKLIN

Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 31, 2009 '

Schedule 5

Variance with

Original final budget -
and final Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUE
Taxes $ 1,800,000 $ 1,900,000 $ 1,900,000 $ -
Special assessments - - 263,000 263,000
Investment earnings , 239,131 220,161 327,181 107,020
Total Revenue 2,139,131 2,120,161 2,490,181 370,020
EXPENDITURES
Debt service )
Principal 3,400,000 7,800,000 7,800,000 -
Interest 996,014 974,373 973,711 662
Total Expenditures : 4,396,014 8,774,373 8,773,711 662
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue .
Qver Expenditures (2,256,883) (6,654,212) (6,283,530) 370,682
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in . 1,719,883 2,972,212 23,190 (2,949,022)
Transfers out - - - -
Net change in fund balances (637,000)  (3,682,000) (6,260,340) (2,578,340)
Fund balances - beginning 8,339,240 8,339,240 8,339,240 -
Fund balances - ending $ 7,802,240 $ 4,657,240 $ 2,078900 $ (2,578,340)
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
Library Operating Fund
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 31, 2009

Schedule 6

REVENUE
Taxes
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous revenue

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Page 83

Variance with

Original final budget -
and final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable})
$1,150,000 $1,150,000 $ -
24,000 22,639 (1,361)
50,000 101,056 51,056
1,224,000 1,273,695 49,695
1,186,210 1,135,318 50,892
87,450 83,013 4,437
1,273,660 1,218,331 55,329
(49,660) 55,364 105,024
298,479 298,479 -
$ 248819 § 353,843 § 105,024
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CITY OF FRANKLIN

Fiduciary Funds
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds

Year Ended December 31, 2009

Schedule 8

PROPERTY TAX AGENCY FUND

ASSETS :
Cash and investmenis
Receivables

Taxes recelvable
Accounts receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other governments

Total liabilities

OTHER AGENCY FUND
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Special deposits

. Total liabilities

TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
.Due to other governments
Special deposits

Total liabilities

12/31/08

Additions

Deductions

12/31/09

$ 45,506,519

17,147,677
15,117

$ 89,862,578
64,441,133

$ 88,402,246

64,040,617
15,117

$ 46,066,851
17,548,193

$ 62,669,313

$ 154,303,711

$§ 152,457,980

$ 64,515,044

$ 68,278
62,601,035

$ 73,911
64,441,133

$ 68,278
62,601,035

$ 73,911
64,441,133

$ 62,669,313

$ 64,515,044

$ 62,669,313

$ 64,515,044

$ 9,870

711,943

$ 27,505

$ 22502
11,943

$ 14,783

$ 21,813

$ 27,505

$ 34,535

$ 14,783

$ 1,630

20,183 -

$ 1,297
15,580

$ 1,630
22277

$ 1,297
13,486

$ 21,813

$ 16,877

$ 23,907

$ 14,783

$ 45,516,389

17,147,677
27,060

$ 89,890,083
64,441,133

$ 88,424,838

64,040,617
27,060

$ 46,981,634
17,548,193

$ 62,691,126

$ 154,331,216

$ 152,492,515

$ 64,529,827

$ 69,908
62,601,035
20,183

$ 75,208
64,441,133
15,580

$ 69,908
62,601,035
22277

$ 75,208
64,441,133
13,486

$ 62,691,126

$ 64,531,921

$ 62,693,220

$ 64,529,827
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CITY OF FRANKLIN

TIF Districts Fund
Combining Balance Sheet

December 31, 2009

Schedule 9

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Interest receivable

Taxes receivable

Note receivable

Due from other governments

Total assets

" LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Special deposits
Deferred revenue
Long-term advances
Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for contractual obligations
Reserved for note receivaable
Unreserved
TIF #2
TIF #3
TIF #4

Total fund balances (deficif)

Total liabilities and fund balances

District #2 District #3 District #4 Total
$ 585531 % 59557 $§ 166,790 $ 811,878
- 57,102 - 57,102
3,894 360 2,295,166 1,268,430 7,457,956
- 8,785,000 - 8,785,000 .
- - 8,644 8,644
$4,479,801 $11,196,825 $ 1443864 $ 17,120,580
$ 34055 58,820 $ 17,387 § 110,262
15,000 - - 15,000
3,894,360 2,352,268 1,268,430 7,515,058
- 800,000 5,263,000 6,063,000
3,943,415 3,211,088 6,548,817 13,703,320
97,000 167,000 103,000 367,000
- 8,785,000 - 8,785,000
439,476 - - 439,476
- (966,263) - (966,263)
- - {5,207,953) (5,207,953)
536,476 7,985,737 (5,104,953) 3,417,260
$4479801 $ 11,196,825 $ 1,443.864 $ 17,120,580
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Schedule 10

CITY OF FRANKLIN
TIF Districts Fund '
Schedule of TIF Districts Revenue, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended December 31, 2009

District #2 District #3 District #4 Total

REVENUE _

Taxes ' $ 307188 $ 15635719 $ 292,735 § 4,900,339

Intergovernmental revenue 55,599 353,993 5474 415,066

Investment earnings . 32,767 183,838 8,341 224,946

Miscellaneous revenue 1,000 - - 1,000

Total Revenue 3,161,251 2,073,650 306,550 5,541,351

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Conservation and development 16,456 29,333 97,730 143,519
Capital outlay 144,326 614,873 122,526 881,725
Debt service

Principal ' 2,300,000 815,000 - 3,115,000 -

Interest and fiscal charges 348,250 804,997 223,924 1,377,171

Total Expenditures 2,809,032 2,264,203 444 180 5,517,415
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue
Over Expenditures 352,219 (190,653) (137,630) 23,936
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in ' - - - -
Transfers out - - (351,540) (351,540)
Net change in fund balances 362,21¢ (190,853) (489,170) (327,604)
Fund balances - beginning 184,257 8,176,390 _ (4,615,783) 3,744,864
Fund balances - ending $ 536476 $ 7.985737 § (5104,953) $ 3,417,260
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Schedule 11

CITY OF FRANKLIN
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule by Source
December 31, 2009

Governmental funds capital assets:

Land _ $ 24,664,244
Buiidings and improvements 23,824 476
Machinery and equipment 14,934,355
Infrastructure improvements 85,791,859
Construction in process 161,662

Total governmental funds capital assets $§ 149,466,596

_ Investment in governmental capital assets by source:

General Fund $ 2,601,604
Special Revenue Funds _ 2,330,474
Capital Projects Funds 76,778,170 .
Donations 67,756,348

Total governmental funds capital assets $ 149,466,596
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Schedulse 11.1

CITY OF FRANKLIN
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule by Function and Activity
Year Ended December 31, 2009

Buildings Machinary
and and Infrastructura Construction
Function and Activity - Land Improvements  Equlpment Improvements In process Total
- General Government:
Mayor $ - 8 - % 2202 § - % - % 2,202
Aldermen - - 4,769 - - 4,769
Municipal court - - 7,448 - - 7,446
City clerk - - 7,443 - - 7,443
Elections - - 36,352 - - 36,352
Information services - - 368,531 - - 368,531
Administration - - 252,354 - - 252 354
Human resources - - 1,295 - - 1,295
Finance - - 52,167 - - 52,167
Assessor - - 43,681 - - 43,681
Attorney - - 906 - - 906
Municipal buildings 597,437 3,039,649 527,768 - - 4,164,854
Total Generai Government 597,437 _ 3,039,643 _ 1,304,914 - - 4,942,000
Public Safety:
Police 1,201,829 8,418,912 2,449 284 - - 12,070,025
Fire 63,248 4,119,830 3,206,216 - - 7,389,254
Building inspection : - - 253,030 - - 263,030
Total Public Safety 1,265,077 12,538,742 5,908,530 - - 19,712,349
Public Works:
Engingering - - 209,620 - - 209,620
Highway 357 407 2,663,251 4,622,997 - - 7,643,655
Street Lighting - - 1,097 - - 1,087
Infrastructure . 17,997,867 - - B5791,859 - 103,789,726
Construction in process - - - - 151,662 151,662
Total Public Works 18,355,274 2,663,251 4,833,714 85,791,859 151,662 111,795,760
Health & Human Services:
Health - ~ 126,576 - - 126,576
Culture and Recreation: . ]
Library 16,769 4,905,110 2,402,053 - - 7,323,932
Parks 4,429,687 777,724 277,460 - - 5,484,871
Total Culture and Recreation 4,446,456 5,682,834 2,679,513 - - 12,808,803
Conservation and Development:
Community development - - - - - -
Planning - - 81,108 - - 81,108
Total Canservation and Development - - 81,108 - - 81,108

Total governmental funds capital assets $24,664,244 §$23924,476 $14,934,356 $85791,859 § 151,662 § 149,466,596
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity

Year Ended December 31, 2009

Scheduie 11,2

Function and Activity

General Government:
Mayor
Aldermen
Municipal court
City clerk
Elections
Information services
Administration
Human resources
Finance
Assessor
Attorney
Municipal buildings

Total General Government

Public Safety:
Police
Fire
Building inspection
Total Public Safety

Public Works:
Engineering
Highway
Street Lighting
Infrastructure
Construction in process
Total Public Works

Health & Human Services:
Health

Culture and Recreétion:
Library
Parks

Total Culture and Recreation

Governmental Funds Capital Assets

Conservation and Development:

City development

Total Conservation and Development

Total governmental funds capltal assets

12/31/08 Additions Deletions 12/31/09
$ 2,202 $ - % - 5 - 2,202
4,769 - - 4,769
7,448 - - 7.446
7,443 - - 7.443
36,352 - - 36,352
351,142 17,389 - 368,531
251,321 1,033 - 252,354
1,295 - - 1,295
52,167 - - 52,167
43,681 - - 43,681
906 - - 906
4,164,854 - - 4,164,854
4,923,578 18,422 - 4,942,000
12,077 470 190,008 197,453 12,070,025
6,462,054 1,021,197 93,957 7,389,204
272,491 . (19,461) - 253,030
18,812,015 1,191,744 291,410 19,712,349
209,620 - - 209,620
7,222,714 562,904 141,963 7,643,655
1,097 - - 1,097
99,279,072 4 510,654 - 103,789,726
1,624,809 151,662 1,624,809 151,662
108,337,312 5,225,220 1,766,772 111,795,760
83,835 42,741 .- 126,576
7,171,462 162,470 - 7.323,932
5,438,579 46,292 - 5,484,871
12,610,041 198,762 - 12,808,803
81,108 - - 81,108
81,108 - - 81,108
$ 144,847,889 $ 6,676,889 $ 2,058,182 $§ 149,466,596
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STATISTICAL SECTION



Statistical Section

This part of the City of Franklin’s comprehensive annual financial report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial

statements, note disclosures and required supplementary information says about the
City’s overall financial health.

Financial Trends _ Table 1

These fables contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
City’s financial performance and well being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity Table 5
These tables contain trend information to help the reader assess the Cify’s most
significant local revenue source, the property tax.

- Debt Capacity . Table 10

These tables present information fo help the reader assess the affordability of the
City’s current level of outstanding debt and the City’'s ability fo issue additional debt in
the future.

Demographic and Economic Information - Table 13

These tabies offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City's financial activities take place.

Operating Information Table 15

These tables contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the City's financial report relates to the services the City provides
and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information.in these tables is derived from the
comprehensive annual financia! report for the relevant year. The City implemented GASB
Statement 34 in 2003, schedules presenting government-wide information include
information beginning in that year.



z6 abeq

{101 600Z - £00Z 243 Ul pEpniou) 10U SBm £00Z 03 Jold s1eak ay) 10) sinjonSelU| 20N

82¥'198'¥9 EPE'0ES 06 £29'L00'V0L § 9C6'9ES'0LL $ 850'0¥L'TLL $ 069'€e0'8LL $ 802'R04'€8L $
¥8v 1EL2L 91£'826'0) 6v'2zoTL  EYYLEL'Sl kA A lo0'glz’ L 861 VL6V
18R'6ZC 616642 LZh' bl 265'9sh 5/E'g8t 961 LLG 8L1'208
G6¥' 116 990'€¥L'2 62E'E68'T L68'peb'S 256'cH9'Z 802'€80'¢ 295'90¥
819'126'} 508'69/ 065'6Z1°) L08'82¥ 196'08€ 0p9°ZL LLE'IpL
95'0p) G68'GET ¥21'8v2 ¥26'c92 §18'1G¢ QZP' LY oLt vy
Z95°291'1L - - 680'728'T 606°225) ¥61'6E6'L -
g6'eel'ly $ 289'24G'GL LL9'eeL'08 Z66'060'6FL & T6E'860'00L % LOL'ZGR'YOL S L6G'v8Z'2LL S
966'064'89 €96 ¥55'€8 0v9'/69°/8 96+'0.2'06 $ 08£'018'26 $ O0L'EEE'Es $ 6IY'LEB'E6 §
122'ese'e 9610202 BZ¥'08E2Z A BPETYE'C 9eZ'60E'C Zel'sl8T
9g6'glL L GED'ZEL viT'8L1 192612 121'522 $8E'LEC 88¢c'/z¢e
BBE v 99 0cL'20¥' L8 1£6'860'G8 750'662°'88 $ vSE'ZPZ'06 $ 98K'TYR'0B $ 659'9Z3'06 $
{(89L'622'%) 08€'G/6'0 $ E86t¥E'ol Zrb'89/'6. § 8.9'626'6. $ ¥BG'0S9'PR § 6ESTILBE §
£92'¥8¥'01 g15',06'8 £90°zpZ 0L 990'928'0F  (552'660°1) 528806V 9.¥'8E0°C
668'0)) PSPl L¥L'oee LEEEVE 861'c9T rL1'982 0€L'6L¢T
GBY' 116 D90'EVL'S 6Z£'E58'2 1B8'VEP'C 756'EP9'E 802'€80'C £95'90%
819'125°) G08'692 965°6ZL'} 108'8.¥ 196'08¢E or9'zL Ay
9/6'0F 1 568'GEZ vlL'8be ¥26'£9¢ G/8'/SE ger'yiy oLb'ti
Z96'291°'L - - 680'Z8'2 606°22S'L p6L'GEE' b -
(2co'Lc0'aL) ¢ (@pP'veER's) $ vI9'PEQ)L OFe'265'19 ¢ 866'668'S. $ G/9'600'P4 $ 8L0'9SY'OR §
L . L {peiEISaY) . L .
£00Z 002 5002 9002 2002 8002 6002
Jea ) [Bosid ‘

S}a55E joU {BJ0 |

pajolgsalufn)
sasodind 12410
awdaasq
sjuawaaosduw AYmn
Areigin
a0IMas 1920
pajgsay
Jqap palejal o YU 'sjasse |ejdeD uf paIssAl]
lejol

sjasse lau sanianoe adf)-ssauisng |E10)

paloLsaIun
sasodind 1ayiny
pajouisay
199p P21 JO 12U ‘S)assE [eldeD Ul pajsaauy
sanianae adA-ssauisng

$)95SE )5U SAIANDE [BJuUaLLLLBAOD [B}0)

(woyep) pajoinsalun
sasodind tay1o
juswdotassq
sjuawaaoidwl ANnN
Ateiqn
201038 1920
~  pajonsay
193p palEal JO JoU 's1asSE [ENdEeD Ul paIsSsAU|
SIAIIOR [BJUILILIAAOS)

ToeL

(BURUNOI2E JO SISBY [EMJIE)

SIBSA UBASS 1SET

uaunduwon Aq sjassy JaN
NITMNVYS 40 ALID



penuuos

£6 ebeg

9EL'ZoL'6l $ SLL'GlZ'YE § 9€8'080'22 $ 8SL'00.'8L ¢ PSE'SZY’iL $ LDL'EE¥'SE  §  996'ELEVL anuaaaJ weiboxd [€j0}
y16°668'L S¥6'98L'LL  992'62L'8 §0+'626'9 600586 £09°659'L agl'ggL'. enuaaai we.boud seianoe adA)-ssauisng €101,
£08°262'E LEL'LEF'SL  PEEIBLE LPO'LLY'L 0£5'629'L 192'vEL 199'2¢¢ suoinquiuod pue sjuest-euded
186'805'} ¥80'S1S'L eL'TEL')L £02'998'} A4 A TAVNA £85'90L°C ¥20'¥66'C lemeg
¥Z)'860'e DEL'OLE'T $6L'518'E 199'585'e oz9'0Z8'E £s9'sLe'Y SBF'YSH'Y " 1ejepp
. _ 's20IAes Jo) sabieyn
satpAnae adf)-ssauisng
c2TT9C’LL  TLLI9Y'9L  0LSTISE'E) £G2°0L2°L1 GP.'6£9°6 y0L'vLL'L 08.'285'9 anuaaas weiboud safianoe [ejusiwisaob 210
¥06'59%'S 00¥'8¥0'0L  92G'8ZL'9 L¥Z'068'Y ZL9'86.L'2 EEE'SEL) 060°061°L suonnquiuod pue sjuelb ende)
FAZ:RA NS 008'088°L . 669'6£8'L $98's1L0'C 1£6'/G6'2 512'682'C £L2'080'2 suognquuod pue sjuelb bunelssdg
822'%L1 06£'9LL +08'2. L1¥'8E4 L1221 662'50€ 150'29 juswdojaAsp PUB UOHEAIDSUDD)
99E'622 621102 Log'zie 8.2'182 £6.2°'8¢} 161Vl 9sz'ovl uoljeasdas pue aingjng
BYS'9r £22'19 292°L8 B££'29 £58°'68 BEY'98 56869 Sa2IAJ8S UBLUNY PUB YYBaH
Ly¥'yye'L 6Z0'CLY'} 9/¥'evs’L 062Z'L6%')L €LS'1LL0'E 8Y6'5EL 029°099 SyJOM 2)iqnd
660'8£2'C 162'8.+'2 YEL'GLLE 182'¥81'C 0£8'eLP'C 085'292'¢ EL¥'890°C fyayes oqnd
zel'66l  $ LO¥'S6L €088Vl $ 20'6¥lL $ 96¥'9Zc $ e€ev'ole ¢ zee'soe wswwaaob jeisusn
:saones Joj sabieyn
1S3QIANIE |RJUSWILIIA0L)
. anuaaay weiboid
OLlZV¥O6'22 $ ¥iL'0/2'62 ¢ c€I6'veE LS $ 82.620'eE $ 9¥S'IIE LY $ TI¥GOE'sE ¢ 512'99T7'.E sasuadxs |ejol
S¥0'LOS'Y 9cZ'9LL'Y 9/¥'959'S 116'9v6'S aL9'092'9 L0L'866'9 YLLZhY'L sesuadxa saglagoe adAj-ssauIsnq [BJoL
9ee'2e0'c . 9I6'EVL'T GlL¥'6vE'E 259'¢09'2 Z260'0¥9'¢ £25'690'E L9z'92e'e Jamag
602'825'2. 0TE'TLSC 1s0'208'e GZ6'ZrE'E ¥25'029'c 8/5'826'C csy'ale'y 19eM
saAnae adf-ssauisng
GOL'EOP'€e  BEE'ESS'YE  LEVP'8EL'SE 151'€80°22 0£6'059'GE LIE/9E°LE L00°¥Z8°'62 gasuadxa saniAioe [ElusWIWSACE [Bl0)
0£L°009C  QLI'SYET 188022 192'v1S'T v62'S0L'C 696 59'C SLZ'EST'T 198p wie) Buoj ua jsase|
LS6'LSY 960'861 117'999 £86'vc0 199'165'9 Ze0'gLs 660°009 juawdoj@Aap pUB UOHBAIDSUCD
09£'062'} 667’82V} 990°195'} 51L8'c8') $12'994'L SS1°g08'} 6S1'eSL'L UORESII9) PUE UMD
E9L'VLG 0S8'8ES 0ZS'0LS 160'2L5 200'0E9 292'c99 #8080 S90S UBLWINY pug ey
o¥8'18s's [A 414 zov'elo'y EL9'60L Y 292'008'9 801'006'9 022've0'9 syiom dlland
cZE'VPE'ZL  88P'YC0'El  GLB'EES'El £le'286'c) 168'Z8'L Z¥9'865'S1 1£0'925'GlL Rsjes aqnd
08E09G'z ¢ E¥6'GES'T ¢ 952885 $ G/S'0ELZ $ MP0BOLEC $ 06820t § S1L8¥6'T justwiaach [eiauag
ISONIARDE [EJUDLILIDAOL)
sasuadx3y
£002 002 S002 9002 1002 800Z 6002
JEa) [edsiy

ST

(BURUNCOoE JO SISEQ] |ENIDIE)

gJe3 ) UBASG JsBT 'S19SSY JaN Ul sabueyn
NITMNYYd 40 ALID .



6 abed

992'6EL'eL ¢ GI6'Zo6'sz ¢ 082'LiP'El ¢ 6Fp'ElLo'0L $ 021102 ¢ Te9Eegs  § sis'ose's 3 - ey

L6 ¥66'Y £98'851 | LI9°201'Y 969'2ZLL'S #88'6£0°C acl'cls £05 895 :sapiagoe edA-ssauisng

goerPl'L $ SPS'POZ'LL $ €09'80E'6  $ €£6S008'2 & 9cg L9l $ 006'02.F & G6B'lZl's  $ safiAjoe [BjUalIUIBA0D)

sjossYy JaN w abueys

ZHELPB'0Z $ LZB'PLD'LZ $ JGEGRLZZ $ BLOCKEYE $ CLEL89'9Z $ /6£'SZERE $ /92'€99'eC $ 2ol

#0'959' L 8697124 188'620°1 820°0EL'C 1681 {922'88) 160'502 senianoe adAj-ssauisng |e10
LI8'EES'| GPo'eeo’L Lgg've6 . GEL0.6°) 85Z'095 (Z2LZ'ver) gz.'001 sijsuell
¥22'ES 865°'GQ oLs'LS oFg8'ov oty Ly 6L8'292 129'15 BNUSA3I SNoIUE||2osIy
66¢'8l SS¥'glL 9601 £SH'ZLL IBL'ELL £19'219 8cl'oy sBuuies Juawisaay|

:saipanae adA}-ssauisng

86268261 £Le'262'61 0.¥'S5.°12 166'218'2¢2 LZ¥'TL6'ST gl1'vleee 6/1'g5¢e'ee safIAncE [EluawulaAob 1o
(L28'¢95'))  (Sp9'ceQ'l) (1L8Z'¥ee) (gez'026'1)  {(8GZ'095) LT vey {ozz'001) sigjsued ]
¥R8'CET 9zs'vol 9/Z'6LL ¥62'L1 £L9'Z5h LGP'pL gog'cd anuanal SNo3UBlRISIN
£06'€5 £8O'LS PL2LLLL Zi6'1e5'e 621'L¥5'C 889'298'l 095'LO¥'L sBulwea yusunsaau|

LE6'EB5'L GZH'SEL' L P62'12T°L PES'PEE'L or8'Lot'L 98z'02e'L gL¥'08c'L swelBoud syoads o] pajoLsas Jou

. anuaAal |eluawuisaobiaiu)
082'2¢ 8E0'0LE gLL'LeE g9L'6l¥ ¥19'62F G/S'ClY £92'099 saxe) Jaio
Z80'1LE9'T 6.6'6ZL'C g9€/'6L6'C 80£'098' 9LL'/ZL'S L18'689'y o1Z'628'Y SIOMSIQ 1L 104 paiaa| saxe} Apadold
¥208'0L9°2 LiZ'oLy'e 000'0LE'2 oop'oiz'e go0'oLL'2 000'000'2 000'006°L ‘ 22IAI9S 1qap 10} paiae| saxe} Apadold
65¥'c/9'21 ¢ o8%'/68'cl S €50'04S5'FL ¢ O0BE'0SE'SL § /STOV'OL ¢ OSL'veS'ZE $ gl2'.e28L % sasodind |esauab Joy pains| saxe} Apadold

ISANIAIIOR [EJUSIULLIDAOL)
sjassy 19N w sabueyo JOYI0 pUuk anusAay [eJoua

(vi0'zog'e) & wye'ipe'y ¢ (L20'vLe'6) ¢ (028'62E'wL) ¢ (Z6L'08p've) ¢ (S92°1€6'22) $ (BVLTBR'ZE) § asuadxa j8u 210,
598'9SE'E 602°0V0'El 06.'Z.0c . 928786 £66'VZE') Z05°1.99 ZIV'EVE sapapoe adiy-ssauisng
(cre'orl'el) ¢ (soL'zeo's) ¢ (Los'osc'zh) ¢ (8se'zie'sh)$ (ssl'iig'se) ¢ (Loz'ess'ed) § (1ee'oczed) § SOIIIAIOE [2JUSLLILLIZACD
anuaaay(asuadxy) JoN
£002 ¥002 500z 9002 2002 8002 6002
IEETNEEE]

(Bunjunoooe jo siseq eniooe)
SJBa ) UaASS Jse 'Sjessy JoN ul sabiueyn
S NITYNV¥4 40 ALID
PERNJOUDD
¢ 8lqel,



56 obed

“pung 9suciiajug ue se papodal pue peje)sal SBM Y| Z00Z Ul PUNY Snueaay (E1DedS B SE Jo) Pejunodde Sem pund aoiuss JBIUES auy) £00Z o) Jold .

EOL'I0S0Z % GhZEebOL S BYO ML ELS LLLOZ0GHS OOFPSHPE § OG1Z96°SZ ¢ SOP'SELETS 000 MIQIC S LITBBLGC § 2H5lsg'ol § S30Ue(Eq PURy (B10]
Foo'orsGl  LEE'P6L'ZE  LECELS'S 1/2'€95'8 2251191 060'960'61 IE9'ELLBlL 816'648'6L  OlL'yse'oE PO LLL L) Spuny JualwwaAch 52410 (e [ejot
SIS'ERL 858°188'e 555°085° L12'6EG'Y 882'090'c 2TT'es51L's (£¥0'6/8) {ogg'soc'yL) (985'v51'Y) (894°205°F) spuny syoafoid [epded
£88'79/'L 504'015°1 £56'212 268'221 610'p81 0:2'812 0Z8'v6T 8zs'a0g’L 902'Zel 8re'sol Spunj SnuUSAd: |epadg
‘u papnda) ‘paniesaiun
- - - 19598 £8Z'9¢EL $£a'291 8/8°182 $¥8°052 abs'alZ Ze1's0z sjuess g suoheuoq
819'120°1 06Z'9Pe 550'504 SBP'LL6 " gO0'EL'T 678'£58'2 L68'v8Y'E - 802'€00'E Zas'o0v juswdojaraq
Z280'255'T Z8Y'Sey'e 169'6.E'E 2.9'125°} 508'59. 965'6Z1' Log'slt 196'08€ a9z LIE'LPL sjusLuaaosdu Agn
ol's 6201 SE0°LL PEE'PL LOZ'HE yzo'ol Z5¥'LL pse'zl 2966 8650} $80lA19s ENpaW Aouabiawg
- - - - - ' - $T8'65C §/8'26¢8 AR AR 60G'2HY saoilas Aigr]
500'shy'L 669°26€') 206 24L'T g9£0'z45'L T 995'9Z) #55°'100' 8c2'99'c Ge.'0v2'TL  099°1L60TI 006'Sh8'e a01M19s 1990
065'699't LIG'ELS'L 000'08€’L 96010} $12'802 Zr1'ezo 000'6¥8'L 000's92't oon‘gsy'y 000°2LS suopefiqo enpenuod
- - - - - 186'212'9 697'926'9 000'00L'¥}  000'00E' 0D0'eor's SPuUny J3Y0 0} SI0UBAPY
£rl'obt'e 000'g09'L 000'0Z1 00022 * 000'91 zeo'e 0oL'289 oo0'LER 000'982'L 202°21 spiedasd pue saoueIqUINOUZ
110) paiasay
spuny JuUSWWIBA0E Jayo |y
6EP'¥GE'Y ¥88'eEl'y L1825 S o¥z'o0l's TR TA) 090'69+'9 ¥£9'120"2 Zoy'6e6’s L#0'SYS'S 8£9'p0L'S puny (esauab 1ejoL
BoY'ZeS'Y 625 ¥Z9'Y LPE'OEE 6¥5'Z60'0 016'051'0 699'L1¥'9 $96'6/2'9 Z61'688'Y ZE6'61G'S LLi'gL0's paasassn
- - Qo0‘002'L - - - 000'004 000'c00'L - - Spuny Jaylo O} SISUBAPY
000'€S 000'201 000'08 - - DDO'E0L 00061 ooo'ol 000'12 - 000'L ; SSOUBIGLUNDUS
056'gk $ sse'ZL  $ 9i8'02 8 189Sl $ 9268 lee'ge  $ 0/8'lE S OBBYE  $ 60L'ST $ lZe've. ¢ Sway predsid pue salojusAu]
10} poAasa
punj |ejauacy
0002 L00Z Z00z £00Z #00Z §00Z 8002 1002 2002 6002
1ea) [easid

gaiqel

{Bugunoeooe Jo siseq |enJode payipow)
sieg) ual jse
SPUN4 [BUBLILISACE) ‘sBoURled PuUng

NITINYYL 40 ALID



‘a|qejieas Ajjpeal 10U Sl UoeLLIOjUL BY) SE Supyppe jasse [=yde Jo pee)sul Aepno jendes 1eyo) Bujonpep Ag pajejnojeo s1 ebejueased syl $00Z 0) Joud ,

9 abeq

%59k %26l %29 %eLl %G 02 %9z %0°}2 %5l %042 %P'eE
6EEFC6E § (288'295€) 5 (E26GLL'H).§ £906v8 S (150G16) § €v82ilLL § (SBO'LES'L) § (Sev'velz) § LiTesl'y 8 (esz'lie®) $
{ror'poe’el  (lov'essvl  (126'88E)  {vEv'Zel's)  (#8T'106'F) (erzozv'y)  (sse’osr’€l  (os¥'0o¥S)  (191°626'F) (952'508°1)
¥S1'POE'S LOF'g85'y LL6'BBE'L £05'8LT'L GEI'ELT'E LO¥'08Y'E 960°'L56'C 808'2£2'9 181'982's 9e0'622'2
- (oo0'0Qo'0L) - - - - {ooo'0LL'B) - - -
- - - - - - - (czo'0p0'01) - -
- - - : - - L9S'¥02 . ¥e5'oLl 06'vE £85'cg -
- - - - - - - 000'526'6 - -
000'000°01  000'000°02 - - - poo‘ooo'ol  000'000°0L  00D'000'0L 000'000°01 -
{1o1's20'v)  (seg'sog'el)  (£zg'si'l) PE6'ZES'E ¥66'LLL eo5'zo6'L  (pg'glo'e)  (SOL1eazL)  (Z6E'Z5L'Q) (65" 0v8'6)
66C'6LY'8Z  /BE'E06'BE 6¥R'2G)'22  6LP'9ZO'PZ 980'465°LE SOZ'PRZ'IE-  ZBO'EPE'BE  COY'BRO'SP  GOE'GLY LY L16'68E"Pb
- - - - - 052's¥ 00.'SE Z090E) 05950 -
695'680°} 888'8v9’) 062'615') £96'L9P'L LLZLIE'L ore'EZL'E 162'9£8'2 080'¥85'Z ¥BL'EYS'Z Z69'05€'T
goo'okz'z.  000'008°Z 000'050'2 000°099'Z 000°000'F c00'sIT'Y 000'050'% 000'0£1'S 000'000'0 000'S1LE'DL
8ES'06Y'8 69E' 26001 09Z'¥£8's IvL'I6%'L £68°'8v2'Z goy'seL'e 1E8'ZR8'8 685'1€6'01 §6%'129'L 628'190'G
218'80F B¥1'BLS £58'78¢ 180'PEY alz'ele 826'¥S8 ¥£9'829 580'285'9 ¥22'62L 106°€09
AL WAl Er0'8E6 199'180'L 6vE'S20'L zzR'eel’L orv'0Lz') 165'886'L LB6°0EF' | GEG'06'1 Gh6 L2yl
DLFOLY 11 ) 4 0ZZ'96% 8e5°955 ZZr'LES g6 66F 816'245 188°1e9 ¥oE'999 128'L0L
BEG'RLL'Y Z55'v59'p EGIVEL'E 8094'G6E'E Z6E'08G'E £L1'Gv1'E BEF'6E0'Y 0oF'0LL'Y IS6'TE'Y LLOb0S'Y
GZ9'265'8 0L9'6£2°6 99.'685°01 B62'0SZ'LL  ZDL'BOL'EE B9L'229'2,  Z09'BET'El  Z80'SG8El 0¥9'98Z'sl 22Z9'Er0'GL
BLL¥EE'E 960'EFY'T ¥E0'690'T BOG'S6T'T §z0'292'e Zog'vle's 120'28Y'T lEL'609°2 SER'S28'Z ¥ry'0BL'E
PEV'PPEYE  BOS'GEE'DE gzZe'Zv0'oe  ESE'EGLAZ Z80'GLZ'8E BZE'OBL'EE  SEG/EESE  86Z'IDL'GE E16'G00°CE 89E'6¥S PE
000°0E2 2O’ IET 605 ZG1'1E5 266 1¥¥ 901508 20T'e5L ¥l PE6 YZLECl ¥Zb'GED
£28'269'2 LBE'T6Y'Z 692'214'1 22L'p09 061'66¥ £oL'IZLL 581'¥05'T £0L'ELSE 8EL'26L'L 009'9L2'L
6LV g51°Z65 §6£'209 £56'829 600'GL5 ¥E0'L65 SER'FLS L8E'9ZF 9591'902 $85°'162
LOL'PLL'L 6.6'890°2 296'08Z'Z ESP'ELZ'E 1Z6'18L'E ¥LE'020'S S¥2'885'E ZO6'L95') B6¥'7IL'L 9EL' 218
1£0'968'2 £8Z'0B6'C ov0'eve’ )L 8.8'€88'L +86'E00' 0.8°180'2 #PL'OSL'E 065'866°'1 £L¥'B06'} £LE'C09'L
¥61'6Lp 6E0'0PY RIR'VLY B£0'20¢ 6391'265 9G9'1oE 060'2EE LG¥' Z6E 826'29¢ izv'ges
28E'666 5¥9'6Z0'L £95'¥5T' ) $86'020°) G¥'85Z°L - 096'9B¥'L §BG08E"L TH6'8L6 §2Z'cZL 8.2'608
695'LIP'2 LLE'OEY'E S8LIG0'E 6G1'290'E 605°550°E £15'216'2 #18'880'E 696'692'v SE9'9ES'E 8r9'66Z'C
QLIZbE'ZL $ BEZ'CSO'PL § BZC'EOEGL § €9C'OEGCL ¢ GYR'EeL'Sl ¢ ZO06'OBL'0Z $ OZB'BEB'DZ & /P0O'120'ZZ § OEG'ZEO'YZ & BGE'EEYEZ §
0002 1002 Z00Z €002 ¥002 5002 9002 2002 8002 6002
j Jea) [edsiy

» SeImipuadxs [endeo uou Jo
abBejuaoiad e se 99)ates 1q9Q

sasueleq puny Ul sbueya jaN

N0 si9ysuel]
ul sJgjsuel]
Buipunyas Juanung uo uawded jedioung
Juabie moios3a Buipunyal O JuawAed
panss! 1qap U0 wniwg
panssi jJq3p buipunjay
panssii9aQ

{sasn) saoanos Hulaueuy Jay3o

salmipuadxa {(Jopun) 1940 3NUSAD] JO SS99XT

saimipuadxa g0

S)500 SIUENSS 1030
1s319y|
[edruud

NAIBS 1980

£=yno jenden
Juawdaaaap puE UKEAIDSUOT)
uoneanpa pue ugiealaal ‘ainyny
S39IAJ3S UBLLNY PUE Lj|eaH
sylam algng
fajes algng
juswiwan0b |elsuas)

SUETT )

sainypuadxy

anueAal [ej0]

SNUBARI SNOAUR]ROSIN

sBulwIea juaunsaau|

sanialas 1oy sabileys [EJuaLwIBA0BISU]
SJUBLISSOSSE [BI0ads

saqinas Joj sabileyo ongnd

sopjeduad pue saimapo) ‘sauiy

syuLad pue sasuaoy]

aNuaAal [EjUBWILIBACGISIU|

SOXE|

SNU2AIY

¥ algel

{BURUNODDE Jo SiSeq |BNIJOE pagipoL)

slgay), Us) Jsen

SpUn 4 [EUBWILIBACS) 'SaDUB(Eg pund Uy sabueys
NITMNYYA 40 ALID



/B mwmn_

‘suoijelado Apo sJeak Buimo||o) ey} Ul pasn ale pajoa||oo saxe |
‘sjuswisnipe G 0/ UOID8S UISUOISIAA OPN[OUL PUE SNUSASY JO Juswipedaq UISUOISIAA aU) Wol) paule1qo
219M SON[EA [ENDE PAlBWIIST @nuUdAsy Jo Juawpedsq UISUODSIAA SU) pUB AjD auy Aq paunwlajep ale sanjea pessessy  -SION

ovL‘G81ZoL'e $ 00b'098'6€2 $ 00S'vL9'€0L $ 0p2'0LL'818C S 1ejol

002°502 0E} - 006'268'%Z  008'CLESO} 1oUIs|p 8Beiemas apIsiNO
Oby'6L6'LEQ'E § 00r'098'65Z & 009'12'829 $ Ovb'/6E'€LLZ S 1oUsIp oBRIoMaS UIYIAY
[ejoL Joussiqy EINEY sy
looyos looyos joouog
|[BUUAA ulpuel wpuesy .
MIRID NEQ

6002 - Jos1d [ooyds Aq uoljen|ep passassy IeaA Juawssossesy

%98°86 oom.wmm.._‘u.w.v 19°L 0£6°L 42088 L 00L'2EL'LS 0EL'LOE"0S 00Z'90%°028°} 008°026'66.L°L +» 0002
%8256 00£°129'920°2 20’8 0L¥'720°1€6°) 00€'095°¥5 0/6'v26°15 000°L1L1LZ26') 006'660'6.8'L L00C
%LL 68 005°0L0'€22'T L1°8 0¥0'629'666'} 005°208'65 0F2'€92°€S 000'€02'¢9l'c - 00E'SL6 Y6 L ¢002
%ELLOL- 005'592°00V'2 089 0¥9°288’Ley'e 004"V ¥2'65 0r9°'Gor'as 008'€CS'L¥E'C 000°LLY'2.LE'C + €002
%vl'¥6 005'6¥6°189'2 G6'9 0Z1'818°0%5°C 005°18£'05 041'259°08 000'%96°1LE9'T 000°991'06%'C +00<
%61 88 006°GL80L0'E £8°9 099'266'189°C oov' LIG'S. 09.°069°v9 00S'+0€'656'C 006°L¥E'LL9T S00Z
%8E°66 00.°'662°18%'¢ 8G6°¢ 0v6'0ve 09¥'E 00690585, oo.m,\.hm.m\. 008'z82 90’ 0¥e'e9l'v8e'e « 9002
%80°L6 00¥'¥50°'689°' 8LG 0r1'282°185°c ooL'oLE'vL . ooo.\..No.E 00E'vPL'vL9'E orL'092'0LS'e 2002
%E8 6 00£°28£°868'¢ 8L°G 0¥5'620°269'C 00S'€2E'LL . 009'708°'GL 008'€90°'LZ8'E 0b6'vee’ 129’ 800<2
%G1 96 009'Zr9'ZIB'E $ 926 $ 0pl'selZ9l't $ oow.NvN..Nm $ 009°198°06 $ .oom.oov.omm.m ¢ 0rS'ece'l.9t$ 600C
L anjeA |ENJOB  9)By XBL oneA SN|eA [enjoe an[eA an[eA [enjoe anfea m
pojewss psjewnsy  joauQ possassy pajewisy possassy palew)sg possassy jo sy
0] passassy el [e10] |ejot Kyadoid |eucsiad fyedoid jeay anjep
10 opey

SIB9A US| 1SET
Ayadold a|qexe] JO 8N[BA |BNOY PaJELLISTY PUR SN[BA Passassy

NITDINYY A JO ALID
Seqel



g6 abed

Juswuedsq uonaadsu) Buiping s,A)10 :eoinog  (2)
anudASY JO JusLupeda(] WISUODSIAA BU) WOl senjea jenjoe pajewysy (1)

rry'oLeGlL FAS 861'SyQ'GY L6E 002°'90¥°028") 002°219'0¢ 001°8€0'8ZY 006'SGL'LIE' )
621°'165'81 B 99¢°'.69'8Y 29¢ 000°LLL 246"} 00186622 001°089°9EY 008°¢.8°CLS'}
121'810'66 Ly L/2'88L'9¥ £€E 000'c0Z'e9l’c  00Z'6el'¥z  00.°G86'89Y 001'880'029°}
9l0'Gl6'LY gl 9ge'pL2'8p 6vE 008'c2S'LPE'T  006'G99°'€C  009°Z8G'0ES 00.°G.g'181°}
A RAS o 41 ag 0£0'98G v/ £08 000°795°1€9°C 008°'L.6'€T 00Z'8.6'v6S 000'vL9°210°C
LEY'GLO 6V 6% 591'680'98 8GY 005'+0€'S56°C 00S'¢el'ee 000'960'969 000°92£0'9€2'2
Lyy'9le9LL L6 /81°069'GS 80¢ 008°25Z'90v'E 000'802'G2 00Z'cE6'694 0091111192
012'0Z6'6¢€ 514 ¥S6'210°02 . 66 00E'PPL'VIQ'E 00L‘958'8} 008'c95'vir8 00Y'v2e'1SL'T
v19'€2e'82 19 ££6'080°LL [A*] 008'€90°L2RC 00v'6EE'61 009’0t 6E6 008°£82°298°C
cee'e6l vl Ge £69'602'9 $ g¢ 005'002°028°'c $ 006'P00'6) $ 00¥'2S8'9C0°L $ 0Q0CT'EvE'vLLC §

ah[eA sjuLad aneA SN [ejo] PYIO T puunpenuUe |enuapisey

Jo# O # pue dwemsg pue
uoRaNAsuoD uonon)suUo) ‘lesnyriouby [BI0JaWLwoD
|elJUSDISSIUON |enuapIsoY an|eA Apadold [enjdy 8jewisy
(2) (@) (L)

0002

100¢C
<002

€002
¥00e
G00¢
900¢

2002
800Z
6002

‘_NQN
[eos! ]

galqel

SIBOA U8 )seT

B1e(] uonanysuo) pue anjep Apadold |enjoy pajewsy

NITMNVd 40 ALID



66 abed

sjusLLINDOp 186pNg uIPURI] JO AIID :80Inos
"PalA9] aJe SaXe) 3} Yolym Ul JeaA [eosy oy Buimo|o) Jeak ay s1 Jeek 18bpng syl

‘Jo)181 eBeIemag pue [ooYysS AqQ SanjeA passasse 1o g ajqel eas (ulpue.g) ¥0LIsIp jooyos Jsabie| sy
AlUo Jo) umOUS I B0} 9L, "Pa1eoo) s Auadold ay; 1o1ysip |ooyDs BUy) pue sme)s Jamas sAuadoid e uodn juepuadap sejel xe) ey sey AN YL ..

joedwl Juawssasseay , 910N

16'8¢ 0go0 21 09°S Goe (ove) zzelr se68 68l L9 020 9e’0 - sel - 0e's « 002

YE'OE e’ 8L 89S ElL'2 (66'L) 292L 966 oSyl 208 820 SZ'0 920 Ay} £¥0 ce's 2002
ELOE. ¢20 691 19°S vee (z6'1) LLZL 6101 98€El '8 ¥EO 14 0¢0o LE°L St'o L9°S €002
ev'oe 020 IS} Ly S6') (g&')) og0L Zre - ¥ 089 0E0 ) 600 POl © 8E0 88’y . Y0OZ
g9 ld0 29 18 s0¢ (05’1t} 0g1L €62 19°¢l S69 o0e0 0L'0 ¥1'0 S60 0bOo 90's S00Z
6192 lg0 091 3204 £L°¢ (ov't) zeoL 068 Loct €89 00 SL'0 oL'o 98’0 ero 00 800z
or'le 21’0 LEL S6't 8.1 {gg’L) ¢g1'6 G6'9  GS00) 899G 8co 600 €10 P90 ¥EO o'y . 1002
BG'Z2 81’0 ¢2gl Loy £8°L (zg'l)  ov'e S8z 86°01 8L’ 82’0 0L0 710 650 VEO 1250 4 800
022 81’0 9t A4 €6°L {89°1) 596 08’4 9601 8L €20 80°0 €10 G860 ££0 'y 6002

PPEZ S 8L0% 8E1L S LEV § 86+ $ (L91)$ 110LS 988¢$ €€Il$ €65% €20 $ 800 $ ¥LO$ ¥50% €L0$ 19v$ 00T

aley ejElS  PMsIq  Aunoc) 90900 SHpal])  [IBUBUAN ¥E8I) ujpue.ld [Ej0] ewaaoidu| DuAjoasy ABANQ  adlMeg ARG [BJBUSS) IETS

|elol sbelomag aasnemjiy (EDIIYD2)  |0OLDS e sng  swdinbg |enden 198Q 1ebpng
(e} ueyjodonaiy gary SpWsIg |00YdS : Sa1eY 10a)1Q uipueld Jo AuD -
asqnemIy aanemliinl

sajey Buiddepaan

(anjeA passasse Jo 00013 Jod a)el)
Slesj ua) 1se7
sa)ey xe| Auadoiy Buiddepsap pue 19210 .

NITTMNV¥d 40 ALID
JAECEN ( .



001 abed
9010 SJ0SSOSSY UIpjUEL] JO A0 1924n0S

%.6°9 0¥S°'108°'82L S %L 009'¥S¥'90€ ¢
%LS0 6  0E£'29¢'6 - - sjuspedy sydy sjliH uolssiiy
%250 8  028'795'6 - - JusWIBA0ICW| SWOH - (1Ie19y JodaQ swioH
- - SaUIYIEBW Jaj[y .
%P5 0 .  008'c6'6 - - pue Buijaqe| peads UBIH Ju| sauody
%990 9  0£2'282Cl %8E 0 0L 000°LLLYL uono9|j0d dsnjal pue ipuen swabeuey sisepm
%0L0 - S  00)1'806'C}) %LE0 6 005'9.0'v) sjyby Jusosalony pue swnuenby wnuenby sse(9) [
- %0¥'0 8  00G'€i8'vl JueWwaAcIdw] SWOH - )oY oul- pJeusiy
%G8°0 €  001'599'Gl %050 . 008'0z6'8l Buumoenuew s10A0J0j0N uospiaeq Aspey
%9.°0 ¥  062'00L'vl %05 0 9 001'626'8) lsjierey : He-eM
%8870 Z ozZi'evziol %LG'0 S ool'ere'sl sjuewipedy SNeQ Jejsayouep
%EG'0 ¥ 009'9v8'6l Bunmoenuew Buibexoed juswdojaaag DTLA
" %01 L 09l'siy'oz %50 € 002'cee'oz sjuawpedy  sjuswpedy ajuiod [[PUNUM
%S0 0l . 0£l'86e'8 %E6°0 Z  00E'666'VE saljlioe) [2opsly  WRISAG aled Y)edH JUBUSACD
- To- $ %8¥E I 005'656'0E) $ S0IAI8S @2UBINSU| [EMINIY UI8)SSMYLION
uonenieaA  juey aneA uoienep  yuey anjeA sseuisng JoadAL . ToRedxe
passessy passassy passassy passassy
a|qexe] s|qexe] a|qexe]. - a|gexe)
[Bj01 Jo ST |ejol Jo
U904 Juaniad
0002 6002

0By siea A aUIN _u.cm leai aing
sioAedxe ] Auadoid |ediould

NITTMNVYL 4O ALID
8 3qel



CITY OF FRANKLIN

Last Ten Years

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Table 8

Fiscal
ear

2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002
2001
2000

Source:

Notes:

City Tax levy Outstanding

- Tax combined
increment Total % of levy delinquent

financing Local Total collections  collected PP taxes
$ 4,829,216 $ 20,142,000 $ 24,971,216 $ 24,972,712 100.01% $ 36,945
4,685,811 19,555,000 24,240,811 24,219,148 99.91% 45,243
3,127,116 18,501,000 21,628,116 21,641,373 100.06% 27,424
2,860,368 17,566,000 20,426,368 20,420,758 99.97% 42,150
2,925,386 16,899,300 19,824,686 19,811,739 99.93% 52,998
2,729,979 15,813,611 18,543,59(} 18,537,786 99.97% 65,425
2,631,082 15,606,851 18,237,933 18,115,165 99.33% 57,488
2,686,561 14,861,543 17,548,104 17,483,984 99.63% 83,6006
2,220,643 13,487,899 15,708,542 15,717,957 100.06% 51,020
1,886,613 11,780,580 13,667,093 13,668,358 100.01% 32,365

City of Franklin

Page 101

Collections in subsequent years are not shown because Milwaukee County
annually purchases all of the City's outstanding delinquent real estate taxes.
Payment for the real estate taxes are received by the City every August pursuant
to the County's settlement procedures. Quistanding delinquent taxes represent
personal property taxes which the City attempts further collection until March of the
following year. At that time the balances are charged back to each of the taxing
juristictions in proportion to the amounts levied. Subsequent collections are
insignificant and refunded to all taxing juristictions in relation to the amounts
originally levied.

Total collections may be greater than or less than the total levy in any year due
to changes in outstanding delinquent taxes, collection of prior year omitted taxes
and Wisconsin Section 70.43 corrections.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN

COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
Last Ten Years

Table 13

Fiscal
year

2009
2008
2007

2006

2005

2004

2003

2002

2001

2000

(1)

From Table 5

Total
(1) 5% of Debt Legal

Equalized Equalized Applicable Debt Percent

Valuation Value to Limit Margin Used
$ 3,012,642600 $ 195832,130 $45,1 65.600 $ 150,467,130 23.09%
| 3,898,387,300 194,819,365 56,080,000 138,839,365 28.77%
3,689,054,400 184,452,720 49,705,000 134,747,720  26.95%
3,481,758,700 174,087,985 41,600,000 132,487,985 23.90%
3,030,815,900 151,540,795 32,900,000 1 18,640.795 21.71%
2,681,945,500 134,097,275 24,800,000 1 09,297.275 18.49%
2,400,765,500 120,038,275 28,800,000 91,238,275  23.99%
2,223,010,500 111,150,525 | 32,400,000 78,750,625 29.15%
2,026,671,300 101,333,565 34,500,000 66,833,565 34.05%
1,871,538,300 93,576,915 27,350,000 66,226,915 29.23%

Note: Under state statutes the City's outstanding general obligation debt may not exceed
five percent of total equalized property value.

Page 105



901 ofied

alqeeAY ION  V/N

sofsiels Jogejo neaing sn - (g)

sisA[BUY PUB YoJeasay JO UOISIAIQ ‘dnusAsy Jo Juswpedaq uisuodsipy - (2)
UISUODSIAA JO 3jBlg ‘snsus) Jo neaing (1)

%Z'E %8'€ %GZ  £06°0T 190'81 202'92  '88.'9¢5'9v8 ¥6v'62 0002
%8’y %L'G %0¥ 16002 280'gl 06£'9¢2 019'156'96. 66L'0¢€ L1002
%0°G %L'9 - %0'EF  608'6L . ZBY'LL 2617z 808'9ZL'9E8 . 6hL0E 2002
%6t %09 %Ly 909'0C 006°L} ez L€Z'GBE'668 Lov'Le €002
%¥ ¥ %E'G %E'c  GG0'IZ 0yZ'gl ¥60'82 9/5'105'€62 y08'Le 002
%Sy %ZS %v'e  yleee ZLE'61 R AT 9£9'7E6'156 845'2¢ G002
%G ¥ %0°G %0 oye'er © 28L0Z ¥80'ce €G1°192°160°L  000'€e 2002
%EV %8y %E'C  PIEVE £09°'12 Ley'ee 08%'[8G'ZLL'L  08E'EE 1002
%6'G %E"Q %EYy  62EPZ $ €621z $ 008'Z€ $ GOE'L08'€OML $ OSS'EE 8002
%E 8 %E'6 %0 L  YIN V/N VIN V/N 00.4°€€ 6002
UISUOISIAA AJLUNDY) uiyueld  UISUCDSIAA Alunosn uIp{uelq ~ 8awooul uciendod 1eak
JoBjEIS  OSNemlN - Jo AIg J0ORIS  a3ynemii Jo A0 [eucsiad (1) [easi4
" Sa)el Em_mwo_nc_mc: awooul ssolb mew&um ejded Jad (2)

SIEsA U] }seT
S211SNEIS 21WOoU0oT pue Jydeibolwsaq

NITMNVYL 40 ALID
¥l siqel .



101 abed

sAanins Jafo|dwa pue suswLRIS [0 Bunayo 1geq 1sed :2aInog

%862 110G

%16°LT 00.'€

%680 oL 05l - - slobueyox3 JesH
%8L°1 6 002 - - ' sjonpoud papjoul Jaggqnd sucdl(IS
%8t L 08¢ - - soSsaUIRY UM
%811 9 00g - - sy Jusasalonyy pue swnuenby
- - %6E") 0L 6ge K101
%t ] £ve %81 6 GG JUSLWIUIBADD)
} - %bvL) 8 00¢ Bupony] ybiel4 jessusg)
- - %1l . 00t UOND3]|02 SSNyal PUE [jljpue]
%.L¥C 14 Ly %602 .9 0%t Bjevy
%L0'C S  0S€ %CE'T S 0ov ‘Bjw sjusuodwod sulbus peol-4o
%02t £ 0] 4% %9EC ¥ 90F JUSUWILLIDAOD)
%S1Y L 00 %eh'e £ Ll saulyoew Jo|y/bBulleqe| paeds YBIH
%9Z°C [ 006G %8v'e ¢ 009 uoheonpg Z1-M
- - %S0l I 008} SSIIAIDG JUSLLISSAU|/SIUBINSU|
wowlodws yuey seehoidws juswdholdwz yuey S8dAojdw3 SSaUIshg Jo adAl
Ano [ej0] j0 A1 2101 1O

juedlad us9I9d
0002 6002

so|weuApounsy| [elauag

ouj BISOA

s)syesoadg a|gen Juona9g

wnuenby sse|9 Y

oAES N oId

uiptuesd jo Ao

uodsuel] Aemuon)

juswsbeuepy s)seM

VeW-epm

9771 By 2Anowony [elauac)
UoI0a.1100) JO 9snoH

Aunon aaynemjil

pejeiodioou] ‘sauosy

S|o0YOS Jliqnd uipjuesd

[N WISISOMULON

ToAEdXE]

Sl =lqel

: 0By sIea A SUIN pue JeaA jusung
sJofo/dw3 jediuud

NITIMNVA 40 ALID



801 @bed Jawnoog 1PEpNg Wueld Jo A1) eanog

pund [zi1auas ey jo Yed sem Aleigr ay3 .00z O Joud
uolsod 90JnoSey UBWINK pUE UDHEASIUWPY St) bapnjou} pue jusiupedsq 3s|D sy} 000z 01 Joud |

0L'8lZ 20'92Z2 12'/2Z ©89'G2z £2'62¢ GL'OEZ €G'CEC O9'VEZ 6E£'8ZZ GE'8Z2 §314 210
QL'¥2Z 20'CEZ 12122 89GZZ £26Z¢ SL'OEZ €GCEC 99'VEZ SE€82Z 6E'82¢ (Ile2 uo pred Suipnjiour) ej0L
G/6 G20V 086 080 OMLL GSBZL S8ZL S82F SSTL 55T Jajep @ Jameg
18’7k 62'GL POGL B85S OMSh ZE9L ZTLL 0TLL  MLZL LV Aeign
090 090 090 0890 G20 - - - - - juels) - jesH yqng
¥6'00Z 8€80Z £9L0Z 6986l B8L'L0Z 8E00C 9F'€0Z LOV0Z 60861 6986l puny [eJaues [ejoL
60 ¥8C &0 LZS 099 099 092 092 09'G 09S uaudojaasg AN
.9k'9 S99 GE'9 G€'9 0§59 059 €99 059 G1'9 g1 el algnd
09°0E SO0'ZE GO'SE GOZE GO'SE GOCE 6G'€¢e J0VE 08728 082E . S}Iopp ongnd [e1oy
§Z'V GZ1 6ZV SZL SZV <STL el) i2% 002 002 syed
S26L 002 00ZZ 00'lZ 0022 002¢ 0022 0022 0022 0022 AemyBiy
08’6 096 086 086 086 086 086 086 08'8 088 Buusauibug
SIop ANand
GL'LEL SZTOPL SLPEL SLEEl SZPEL GZ'LEL 022EL OL'CEL 0L LEL  OLLE} fpjeg oNgnd ferol
00'LL O00'LL 002CL O0LL 002k 000, 000L 000L 008 008 uojpoadsu| Buip|ing
00’9 009 - - - - e - - - il ||eD uo pled
00bF OSPF 00WP O0Vy O0'vP OOFP SvSy SPOr  GPSP  SPOF all4
6.0l G187 Gl'gl G189l G619l GZLL sZLL s2l) Sc il GZ LL . adllod
. Apjes ognd
vl'LZz 6802 BLLZ €€z 8802 862C VBT VLEZ vvIT vveZ JUBILISAOD) [2IBUSE) EJ0
907 95 90G 89F 89v 06V €8 €8F vl'y vy . sBuippng |edwoiunyy
002 002 000Z 00¢ 00b O0L O0Ob OOk 00} 00’} . lossassy
g€, 8L 8L S¥L S¥Z  08L o0gL 0L oL'2 oL soueuly
00E O00E 00E GZ€ GZE 09E 08E 08¢ 09'E 09°¢ : | uonejsiunpy
00’L - - T - - - - - - - S90[AIBS UOIELLLIOUY
0S€ O0SE 0Sg  0SE 0SE 0S¢ E€6¢ €9¢ 00'¥ 00¥ - - 91D
020 S¥0 SY0 GPO0 050 002 00C 00¢C 002 002 sBuipjing jedioiunpy
g0 8¥0 8F0 000 000 [1ounod uowwoD
. JUSLUUISAOE) [BJSUSD)
L0OZ 200C €002 #00C GQOZ ©900C 100Z 800 6002 0102 Wwawyeda

slea) us] ise
uogound Aq sesiojduw] JuawIsAcn) A JudjeAInbg awin-||nyg

NITTMNY¥HAL 40 ALID
gl s[qel



000'685'2  000'65}'S
000'819°L  000'SI8'}

0av'y.

zi5'y

005'PLE 000'0ET

y6L'2

19072
8E0'%S

§/0'8

€EL'g
000'95

0ZZ'IET 6¥5'682

oLl

orr
829'C
AR

0sc
Z05°T -
800,

oFlL
(A2
cl

4

YA
8LE'L
g68'l
655

S5
v59'6L
8L}
3:1%
pLLT
evs

ooog

06l

ocr
9/£'T
068

¥8
(3744
Z66'9

Svl
850°}
6l

34
£65°L
£9L'C
0ls

65
B89zZ'ed
BLE'L
288'9 -
[A:TA4
1471

L00¢

000'€90'S
000'6.8°)
0.9t

000'212
08e'8

Srl'le
.000'09 -~
000'0SE

€61

0zy
218'T
§09

782
oL8'z
£99'9

FAd
000°}
S

er
0191
SET'T
£9¢

65
89v'z8

668°I
09’9
187
189

000°042°S
000'798"}
ge9'y

89’22
085'8

050°5€
00059
986°'00¥

Si1

€8y
860°E
099

LLg
1182
zel's

6%l
LOL')
(X4

ey
0LL')
FLL'T
LES

000'Z19'¥
000'6Z6"1
LIE'S

Lov'ece
69L'e

650'62
9.£'0L}
895'vEY

¥it

14514
055°C
or6

44
160'c
TiE'8

0°]
886
Ll

504
008'l
sTAAA
LSS

69
08.'L8

Z68')
orl'e
2T
59/

002

9/e'l1el'S
000'615'T
0E6'9

TrO'LIE
91z'6

PoE'oy
#08'2L1
ZBE'TSY

80T

Oct
orl'e
ovy'L

€5l
ZEL'E
962’8

0sl
€C8
6l

EY
950C
LSP'T
¥1S

69
ovl'iL
9/0'C
576G
7S6'L
5l

5002

g01 ebed

6Z0'EC0’G
0006922
882’2,

002’611
L95'6

181°15
yzL0Th
gor'sor

P61

£6€
r00'e
To9'L

802
goL'e
89e'B

0s}
ove'l
14

Sp
192'
925'?
885

65
005'L8
685"}
L61'G
120
ol

8002

02¥'260'9
000'125'C
19s's

0L0'Z8
BLL'6

000'vS
000'22)
LY

£ec

961
GlLO'e
LOP'L

G0¢
800'€
I8E's

651
&8s
Le

oy
YIEZ
1912
B8

65

691L'9T
8yl
1002
Z6¥'l
890'L

1002

000°189'S
000'%2¥'2

L €89'L

000'¥92
£98'6

000'5S
000'0EL
E¥8'06Y

591

vie
L0v'E
082’} .

¥it
See'e
6ls's

58l
g.lg
12

b
8.5'C
064'C
v0L

69

L0122
lee't
6¥S'S
L9¥'L
766

8002

000°€08'y
8/2'L9¥'C
9sL's

0oo‘0se
£98'6

7TT0S
000°'LE}
000°'Z6¥

1743

00e
00sS’e
0oL

oLe
0S0'E
00s'8

G9l
oos
oe

1514
009'C
009z
004

006'£2 .

lusuinsoq 196png A1 821n0g

uopdwnsuan Apep yead

uondumsuod Ajlep abeteay

abejaAe- SIWOISNY JO JaqUIny
ISIBAA

* PAUESD 19MBS O 1994
SIBWOISNY JO Jaquiny
Jamag Aejues

asn jaulsiu)

9ZIS UORDINOD

uonenaIy
Aegn

sdnyoid |oljuo?) [Buwiuy
loguo] [ewiuy

suopoadsu) ueuBjURS
SHSIA SILI[S UOezIUnww|
SYSIA SWOH

ulesH

(suoy) slsep pieA

(suoy) peposyjoo sepqepiosy

{su0y) pa1oa||oo asyal S|qelRAIR-UoN
2Isep ples

pauBUIRLY SIDIUSA
paunud ssai)
Buieas 3oesd Jo sajy
Aemubiy

sia)ybuyaly [[e2 uo pied Jo 1equnn
sJeyyByeuy aw-|iny Jo Isqunn
suonosadeut a4
sasucdsay SN
sosuodsay a4

allq -

S1a010 (IOMS JO JSqUINN

yoyedsiq o} |BD

80IAJBS 10} ||BD

suonelD buped

SUONEND 214 |

s)saury

sow) Jolep L Hed
aollod

41 BlqeL

en0z

SIBSA U] JSET
weiBoidjuonaung Ag sioleaipu) Bunesedo

NITMNVEL 40 ALID



011 ebed

SpJoTal UlpjuBLd Jo AlID 180IN0S

Suipjing Ja1Bp0 B JaMaG

029'9 0z9'9 029'9 029'9 029'g 0z9'e 0zo'9 0zo9'9 029'9 0z9'9

oSSy ost'sh 0SSP 0SP'sY osv'sy 0SP'Sy 0sy'sy osv'sP 0s¥'sy osy'sy Buippng sxiop slignd

- - ooo'oy 0o0'0F 000'oF 000D'0F 000'0F 000'0% 000'or 000'0F Aesqgry

090'L2 090'12 Osv'og 0s¥'og 08¥"9g 08%'9% 08¥'9e 08¥'92 08Y'9g 08%'92 suone)g adld

- - 00e'es 00g'89 00g'89 00e'89 00c'89 00E'89 00%'e9 00g'sg Buipying juswasiojug me

o0z Ly o0z’ Ly 00z’ Ly o0g'Ly one'Ly 80z'LY 902’ Ly 20z’ 90z Ly Q0Z'Ly lteH A
:(eBejooy a1enbs) sBuiping [edpunpy

I 3 b } I L I I 3 3 saueIq)] jo JaqUInN

2 8 g8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 sysed Aunod jo Jaquini

b 1 X L L L b 4] 4] 4 syed Ao Jo JaquinN

4 Z FA [4 [4 € £ ¥ ¥ ¥ s|lel} Jo Jaquuni
:a1n)jna pue ucpesIsay

981} Tre'L G6e' | 29c'l geL'L 068'} 956'} 8502 180'2 LB0'C SjuelpAL a1 Jo Jaquini

68 68 G6 86 174 141 1G] €91 9l 59l ueuLsiEM JO SOl

¥l 440 A4 12°1" €9l all 08} L8} gl G8l Jamss Arejiues Jo sa|Iy
19JIASS JalEM pUR JaMRG

2 I b I ! 13 b I b I suonels qns Jo JlaquinN

8 l I l } } 2 1 I [ SUOINeIS JO JIaquINN
suonoatold asnod

[4 £ € € € € £ £ £ £ SUONE)S a1l PSULBW JO JSqLUNN
:82|AI8s apuEjnqLue pue uojoajold ally

6c6rl 68051 GGZSl 89'G51 ae'a51 24291 YL Yol 1£°69L 16991 16'991 oo

Flee PLES YLET 172 TA vLEg vL€2 1 XA vLEC vL'ET PLEE Auno)

gL Sg'oL G891 G8°91 G801 G8'9l GE9L g8'gl G829l S8°'91 aes
‘peal Jo SN

00S's 00S'E 00§’ oos'e 00§'€ 005'c v89't ls8'e £48'c €i8'e avieds uado pue ped Ul saloy

ooe'o ooz'e 002'9 00z'e oz'g 002’9 0LE'0L 84801 £eZ'Ll LBZ'LL (s3ewixoudde) padojaaap samy

ooe'LlL Qog'LlL 00L'21 004'LL Q0L 2L 0OL'LL ZF9'sl $E£9°G) 0585'S1 675Gl (erewnxosdde) sasoe sjqexe |

081'22 081'2e 081'2e 08L'ge ogi'ze 0gL'ze 081'z22 ogl'zz 081'ze 0gL'ze saloe [gje L
' :S8l0B LI BRIy
Sve gvE ave Sy SpE g've SPe SpE Sve Sy sa|1w auenbs ul eary

0002 1002 2002 £002 $00Z S00Z 8002 1002 8002 6002

2l slgel

SIBDA Ua] ise
weJboidjuonouny Aq SoRsneEIS 1955y [enden

NITINVYL 40 ALID



